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STATE BOARD OF PHYSICIANS

INTERVIEW WITH NICOLA RILEY, M.D.

HELD ON AUGUST 24, 2010

INTERVIEW CONDUCTED BY CHRISTINE FARRELLY
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PROCEEDTINGS

MR. FARRELLY: This is Christine Farrelly,
Compliance Analyst with the Maryland Board of Physicians.
Today is August 24th. It’s approximately 2:00 p.m. I'm
on the telephone with Dr. Riley, who is in Utah. I'm
going to just swear you in, Dr. Riley, and then I’11 ask
you to state and spell your name for the record, okay?

DR. RILEY: Yes.

(Witness sworn.)

MS. FARRELLY: Okay, thank you.

EXAMINATION

BY MS. FARRELLY:

Q. Now, could you just state and spell your name
for the record?

A. I am Dr. Nicola Irene Riley, NI CO LA, I RE
N E, Riley, RI L E Y.

Q. Thank you. Could you just provide your home

address or address of record?

A. Okay, I would like to use my business address.
Q. Okay.

A. If that’s appropriate.

Q. Sure.

A. Okay, my business address is 1220 East 3900

‘South, Suite 4A, as in alpha, Salt Lake City, Utah,
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84124.
Q. Okay, thank you. Now, are you in solo practig
out in Utah?
A. Yes, it’s SMP Family Medicine, Personal

Corporation, PC.

Q. Okay. Now, what is your -- do you -- or you
have —-- you have a board certification?
A. Yes, I am certified by the American Board of

Family Medicine.

0. Okay, and is that a time-limited?
A. Excuse me?
0. Is it time-limited? 1Is it a lifetime or a

time-limited?

A. My certification is due for a renewal in —-
December 31st of 2012.

Q. Okay, thank you.

Now, do you have active Maryland -- physician
licensure in any other states?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Okay, could you just tell me those states?

A. The State of Wyoming and the State of Maryland
and the State of Utah. And I currentlyjhave an open
application for licensure in the State of Virginia.

Q. | Oh, okay. Vitginia. Now, forgive me for just

trying to figure out, you live in Utah, but then you, I




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

23

24

25

guess, fly to Maryland? 1Is that -- to work at American
Woman Services?

A. Actually, I do live and work in Utah; and I fly]
every other week to do termination procedures. I fly
into Virginia, where I have family, and I stay. ‘It’s
because I am seeking full custody of my kids to move out
of state from Utah, so I'm trying to establish a work
history, so that is why I applied for a job in Virginia
and Maryland.

Q. Oh, okay, I understand. Okay. Now, how long
have you been flying -- or, well, let’s go backward, I
guess. How did you become affiliated with American Woman
Services?

A. Okay. Basically, I contacted four abortion
clinics in the Maryland/Virginia area, and I interviewed,
and I accepted a position as a contract employee at the
American Woman Services to do first and second trimester
procedures. And as per our independent contractor
agreement and to train to do third trimester abortions
also. I currently do abortions in Utah, and I am medical
director of a women’s clinic here in Utah where I’ve been
performing abortions up to 1l4-plus weeks for the past
five years.

Q. Okay. Now, do you have -- you actually have a

formal agreement, like an independent contractor
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agreement, with American Woman Services?

A. Yes, we do. We have —- I have a signed
contract where Steve Brigham who was the owner and
medical director that hired me.

Q. Okay. And, now, what date, on or about, did

you sign that contract?

A. The contract is dated July 30th, which is a
Friday.
Q. Okay. Now, out in Utah, you’ve been doing

abortions up to 14 weeks for five years?

A. And I trained before that when I was trained to
do abortions, I planned -- trained at Planned Parenthood
in Denver and at the women’s center here that does up to
20 weeks here in Utah, during my first year of training,
so I did a total of a year’s worth of training between
Planned Parenthood, the women’s center here and the other
doctor here in town that does abortions.

Q. Okay, so it would be one year of training for
abortions after 14 weeks?

A. Right.

Q. Okay. Just -- just trying --

A. With a women’s clinic here, because there’s
only one womén's clinic in Utah that can do up to 20-week
aboftions.

Q. Oh, okay. Now; when -- when were you first in
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contact with Dr. Brigham?

A. I think he contacted me, I think, early July is
when I started my job search.

Q. Okay. And, now, did you -- where did you
interview with Dr. Brigham?

A. I actually interviewed at the Voorhees clinic.

Q. Oh, okay, in New Jersey.

A. Mm-hmm.

Q. Okay. Okay. ﬁow, did Dr. Brigham tell you his
licensure status at that time?

A. No,khe did not. He did say -- well, no, he did
say that he was a licensed New Jersey physician.

Q. Okay. And what did he say about the reason
that the clinic in Elkton was operating?

A. It was my understanding, from memory, is that
the initial intake of patients is done at the New Jersey
location, where according to -- as you’ll see in my
exhibits, where they do the initial lab work, consent
forms, as well as laminaria insertion, digoxin insertion

and ultrasound.

Q. Okay.
A. But the procedures are done in Maryland.
Q. Okay, but what was your understanding of why

the procedure couldn’t finish in New Jersey?

A. It was my —-- well, actually, it was my:
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understanding that they couldn’t do second trimester
procedures in New Jersey, and that’s why they were done
in Maryland, and that’s why they had -- where they had
the equipment to do the procedures.

Q. Okay. Now, did Dr. Brigham do any training
with you?

A. We did training starting as of July 30th.

Q. Okay. And could you kind of tell me what that
training entailed?

A. Well, I wouldn’t really say training.
Basically, I reviewed different charts from different
doctors to see how the paperwork was done, what
procedures were done in the New Jersey location, because
I would not be at the New Jersey location, because I
don’t have a New Jersey license, nor was I applying for
one.

So, I did a chart review of about five or six
charts. I actually observed him doing procedures in New
Jersey at that time to see what the procedure and the
protocols were like, for example, what medications are
being used, what the informed consent forms looked like.
Basically, I met the staff there. I did meet the
corporate staff at that location.

Q. Okay. Now, you started your training July

"30th, correct?
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A. Right.

0. Okay. Now, were you also in Elkton on July
30th?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Did you perform abortions in Elkton on
July 30th?

A. Now, I -- this is where I feel uncomfortable.

I was under the impression that we are talking D_
EYll» and the date of service for her in reference to
me is August 13th.

Q. Dr. Riley, you’re a licensee of the Board, and

you have every right to refuse to answer questions;

~ however, you also have an independent duty to cooperate

with the Board’s investigation.

A. Okay. So, I can say yes, but unfortunately I
don’t have the charts in front of me. That’s why I feel
uncomfortable, because now you’re asking me to go from
memory. So, yes, we -—- we did train and do abortions at

the Elkton location on the 30th.

Q. Okay.
A. But any more specific, I don’t have the chart
in front of me. So, that’s why -- I’m trying to be

coopefative, but like I said, I don’t have the ¢hart in

front of me. All I have is the chart inurefefence to

- DingD B
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' personally felt better having an experienced physician

Q. Okay. Now, did Dr. Brigham participate in the
abortions done on July 30th in Elkton?

A. He was in consult. For example, when I had
questions, I would have him observe and look and he would
give recommendations.

0. Okay. So —-

A. That was -~ that was thé construct in which we
said that we would operate.

Q. Okay. And is that in your independent
contractor agreement?

Al Yes, because I was to be paid for the
procedures and to perform them.

Q. Okay. So, Dr. Brigham is there in your opinion
as a consulting physician?

A.  Yes.

0. Okay. ©Now, why is he only there as a
consulting physician?

A. Oh, it was my understanding that because he

didn’t have a Maryland license.

Q. Okay.
A. And I felt more comfortable, especially since
even though I’ve done second trimester, I felt -- just

who had done second trimester procedures to advise me,

and that’s the capacity in which I'asSﬁmed that he would

il




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

-25

be operating under, especially since he doesn’t have a
Maryland license.

Q. Okay. Now, just going back, what was your
training in third trimester abortions?

A. Now, my training in third trimester abortions,
I can honestly —-- I don’t have any official training in
third trimester abortion, just in second trimester
abortions.

Q. Okay.

A. And I did my initial training the first year
before I started —-- became medical director of the
women’s clinic in Utah.

0. Okay. So, now, some of the abortions at the
Elkton location are third trimester, though, correct?

A. I have been told that they do third trimester
abortions there.

Q. Okay. Now, are you stating that you’ve never
done a third trimester abortion in Elkton?

A. I did do one case that had fetal anomaly --
excuse me —- anomaly of anencephaly, and basically that
was basically a partial delivery.

Q. Okay. Now, what type of emergency procedures

were explained to you by Dr. Brigham about the Elkton

location?

A.  Well,. emergency procedures, we didn’t talk.

10
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about emergency procedures, but I always verify when I'm
in a location whether we have a crash cart or that we
have IV -- ability to obtain IV access and if there’s a
nearby emergency room.

Q. Okay.

A. That’s my procedure, and I -- and that was the

—— that was satisfied when I took a tour of the Elkton

location.

Q. Okay. All right, so there is a crash cart
there —-

A. (Inaudible) .

.Q. And there’s --

A. And there’s emergency medications, as well as

oxygen and IV. And I checked to make sure that
everything was not outdated.

Q. Okay. Now ——

A. And that the state hospital was within a two-
block radius.

Q. Okay. So, now, in your response you say
something about a portable machine to monitor vitals.
What machine is that?

A. (Inaudible) machine and a heart and blood -- 4
heart rate and blood pressure monitor.

0. Okay. Okay. Now,_how does it work out, like

the patients are started in New Jersey and they haVe_the

11
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laminaria applied. And then what does Dr. Brigham bring
down to Elkton for you to review?
A. Oh, he brings the complete chart. So, that’s

where I observe the ultrasounds and verify the ultrasound

and to make sure that it is -- agrees with my physical
exam.

0. Okay.

A. View the ultrasound; I review the

documentation, for example, the informed consent, the
surgical consent, how many laminaria were inserted, how
much digoxin is inserted.

0. And then what about medication administered
like that morning before -- before the patients come down
to New Jersey -— or to Maryland?

A. It -- I review that in the chart, what was
done, because usually they have any medications that were
administered, as well as vital signs for that morning.
And usually the ultrasound is done the day before when
the laminaria insertion is done, as well as the digoxin,
to verify whether they have dilated, because some
patients take two days to dilate. So, they do a repeat
ultrasound to determine viability, where their heart rate
is noted, whether they’re dilated enough or more
laminafia needs to be inserted.

Q. ~ Okay. Now, in the materials you submitted to

12
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~well, wait a minute. T haven’t received the subpoena.

the Board, I didn’t see any —-- on Patient D-B-

I didn’t see an ultrasound or any medication

administered.
A. I did not send the complete chart.
Q. Okay.
A. I just sent the pertinent information that

pertains to my statement. But there are about another 2(
pages that are in the complete chart.
Q. Okay. You were issued a subpoena for those

medical records.

A. I was issued -- well, I don’t have access to
the medical records. They’re in the New Jersey location.
Q. Okay, but you’re the licensee, so you have, as

I said, you have an independent duty to cooperate, and if
it’s your medical record, you need to get that for the
Board.

A. I never received a subpoena. I -- honestly,
I’ve never -- I have not -- what I received in the e-mail

this morning from Dr. Brigham is that he received —-—

Am I missing something here?

Q. Yeah, a subpoena was sent to your address of
reqord like at:leasf over a week ago. I can fax that to
you tomorrow morﬁihg.

A. Well, I have not_received'a.subpoéna., All T

13
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full medical chart, because the charts are kept at the

received is the letter that was in the UPS envelope.

Q. Okay.

A. Dated August 20th, and it said pursuant to the
Medical Practice Acts —-

Q. Right, no, I know what letter. What is your
fax number, and I’11 fax you over that subpoena?

A. Okay, the fax number to my office is (801).

Q. Okéy.

0. -okay. I will fax that to you first thing]
tomorrow morning. And as I said, you have to —-- the
subpoena is for the entire medical record. So, you’ll

have to figure out how to get that from Dr. Brigham.

A. Okay.
Q. Now —--
A. Well, actually, what I have -- yeah, see, I

have a partial part of the record. 1I’11 have to get the

New Jersey location.

Q. Okay.
A. So
Q. So, now, when you leave Elkton, Dr. Brigham

takes the medical records immediately?
A. He takes the medical records with the patient

back up to the New Jersey location and that’s where they

14
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have follow-up.
Q. Okay. Okay. So, but you were -- you’re

stating that you were able to review the entire medical

record the morning of August 13th for Patient D-
B-?

A. Right. He brings the charts down with them,
and that’s the first contact I have. So, I review the
medical record, and then I fill out and I talk to the
family, verify the risk and benefits and go over
basically the consent to continue with the procedure.
And then we bring the patient into the room; and then I
do my physical exam; and then T once again inform the
patient of the risk involved before I put them under
anesthesia and ask them if they want to continue with the
procedure before they go under anesthesia, as per my
progress notes and abortion log.

Q. Okay, okay. Now, just in terms of the record
you submitted -- well, let’s go back. What time -do you
meet Dr. Brigham in Elkton?

A Usually they get there —- it depends on when
they come down.and how many patients, because usually
patients and their families follow Dr. Brigham. So, we
usuélly plan on starting the_clinic between 10:00- and
11:00. |

Q.  Okay.

15
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patient’s boyfriend and mother?

procedure. And then we take the patient back into the --

the actual exam room.

A. And the date in question, my first contact with
the patient was approximately -- with her family was
approximately 10:45 to 11:00 on August 13th.

Q. Okay.

A. I did not participate in any of the care on
August 12th.

Q. Okay. Okay, so, what happened at 10:45 to
11:00 a.m. on -- with this patient, D_B- on
August 13th?

A. Okay, so that’s when I review the chart, and
then I ask the question -- any questions I might have in
reference to medical history, for example, she has a
history of asthma. And I believe I asked, have you had
any exacerbations lately, do you have, you know, your
inhaler with you?

Q. Okay. Now, where did this conversation take

place in the Elkton office? Was this in front of the

A. Oh, it takes place partially with the family.
I ask the family if they have any questions, to make sure

they have no questions and they want to continue with the

Q.  Okay.

A. Right, and thét’s where I further go.over the

16
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medical history and I do my physical exam.
Q. Okay, now, how many patients were scheduled for
that Friday, August 13th?

A. Three patients were scheduled and D-

B- was the second patient.

Q. Okay. So, now —-

A. And -
Q. I'm sorry, go ahead.
A. Oh, that’s fine. After she was stabilized in

the E/R, I had to go back to the clinic because I had
another procedure to perform.

Q. Okay. Now, so, what time did you start the
first patient?

A. Okay, the first patient was started —- I
believe they got there at 10:00. The first patient was
started approximately -- about 10:10.

Q. Okay.

A. And it was a fairly uneventful procedure and
was completed within 20 to 25 minutes, and the patient

was 1in recovery. And then that’s when I started
reviewing approximately about 10:45, 10:50, D-

B-s chart.

0. Okay. So, now, when did D-—— when was
D-vbrought into the procedure room?

A.  Approximately about -- I would say a little bit

17
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before 11:00.

Q. Eleven a.m.?
A. Procedure around 11:00 a.m.
Q. Okay. So, now, what medications did you

administer at that time?

A. The medications that we administer are called
twilight, énd it’s basically ketamine and fentanyl
(inaudible) each.

Q. Okay.

A. And then misoprpstol rectally.

Q. Okay. And that’s it?

A. At that point in time.

0. Okay. Now, does the patient at that time
usually have an IV access port?

A. No.

Q; Okay. But you said oxygen is available there
if necessary?

A. Yes, there’s oxygen, there’s (inaudible) and
there’s an IV set up and ready to go forva patient.

Q. Okay. All right, so, nowAyou started the
procedure at 11:00 a.m. - Can you just walk me through
that? What happened?

A. Okay, so, the procedure was started at
approximately 11:00 a.m., after I reviewed the chart and

reviewed the risks and benefits with the patient. The

18
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patient was given anesthetic; vital signs were monitored
continuously throughout. 2And, I’'m sorry, this is where
I'm actually going to read from my note.

Okay, so, for pain management, the patient wasg
given two milligrams IV of Midazolam, 100 micrograms of

fentanyl and 32 (inaudible) of ketamine. Paracervical

=

block, the patient was then put in lithotomy position ank
then a paracervical block was administered using 1

percent lidocaine with (inaudible) oxytocin. And then —H

and this is after -- before misoprostol had been insertef
rectally.

Q. Okay.

A. It was monitored by Pulsox symmetry individual

observation by myself, Dr. Brigham and the medical
assistants 1n attendance. And, so, after the
paracervical block was done, the speculum was then
inserted and the laminaria were then extracted, the gauzd
and laminaria that had been inserted 24 to 48 hours
previously was extracted.

At that point in time, the patient -- it was
noticed that she was dilated approximately four to five
centimeters, and at that time, we began the D&E procedure
using suction, with a 5/16 cannula and forcepé, as well
as various.obstetrical maneuvers. Partial fetal tissue

was extracted, as well as amniotic fluid was- released.

19
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‘talking on the phone to the E/R doctor, Dr. Gill.

And then approximately, I would say, about 10 to 15

minutes into the procedure, what I do is every two -- one

to two minutes T stop suctioning and then observe the
vaginal vault, to see what fetal parts (inaudible) and
then at that time, about 10 to 15 minutes into the
procedure, I (inaudible) extra-uterine tissue.

That’s when I instructed the medical assistant]
to shut off the suction machine. I told Dr. Brigham to
come and to look, and he verified it. And I said -- I
started transporting her to the emergency room. He did
verify that there was extra-uterine tissue.

I went to obtain IV access. She had IV access
for about two to three minutes, then her vein was blown.
At that time, they were getting her dressed, and I went
out to tell the family to follow us via POV to the Union
Hospital which was approximately a block and a half away,
and to follow us via POV.

And then at that time, at a simultaneous point,
had the 6ther medical assistants get the emergency room
doctor on the phone. So, as we then transported her,
after we got hef dressed, we put the Pulsox on her, as
well as the inflatable blood pressure cuff. we put her
into the POV. Dr. Brigham,drove. I sat in the back with

the patient, observing her vital signs while I was

20
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And I basically gave her a brief, you know,
this is D- or an 18-year-old, African-American
female, with a possible uterine perforation at 22 weeks
gestation. I said that we are approximately one to two
minutes away from the E/R location. Her vital signs are
currently stable. T told them what medications, pain
management-wise, that she had been given. The IV access
had been obtained but was not consistent and was not
curreﬁtly present and we need that as soon as we came in

And then at that time, I said we are in front
of the emergency room, I am going to shut off the phone,
I will be in within one tb two minutes. Please have a

wheelchair, as well as nursing staff.

Q. Okay.

A. For the emergency room.

Q. Okay. |

A. And I would say this actually occurred -- from

the time I observed uterine tissue to the time when I got
to the emergency room, I want to say it was definitely
less than 10 minutes.

0. Okay.

A. I had her up and out.

Q. Okay. Now, how qﬁickly —— or what happened on
the emergency room ramp?

A. Okay, so:the‘emérgency room ramp, you know, of

21
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course they stopped us to try to obtain ID, and I said
can we please get the patient into the emergency room.
And, so, that’s when I was talking with Dr. Gill and’
briefing her on the patiept’s status and exactly what hag
transpired at the Elkton clinic. And Dr. Gill did not
know that there was an abortion clinic two blocks down
the street at the High Street location.

I did follow the patient into the E/R room,
where she was hooked up and IV access was being obtained|
I instructed the mother to get her insurance information
if she had it or to provide demographic information for
the clerk so she could be checked in. I further briefed
Dr. Gill, and I told her that I suspect that there was
ex-uterine tissue; therefore, a possible perforation.
And I did identify myself as being Dr. Nicola Riley. I
did leave my name, as well as a cell phone number.

Q. Okay]

A. And that -- I don’t remember there being much
time on the emergency room ramp.

- Q. Okay. Now; did the family request that you
call an ambulance?

A. No, they did not.

Q. Okay. ﬁow,vwho was -- you said that people»
were getting her dressed. Who waé getting the patient

dressed?

22
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~Dr. Brigham. I know that they do work at that initial

A. Okay, so, we have two medical assistants, and

unfortunately, I don’t have their names readily availabld

with me. I don‘t -- let me see -~ I'm looking at what I
have in front of me. Okay, but they should -- the two
medical assistants that accompany -- they have two

medical assistants that accompany the patients and their
families from the New Jersey location.

Q. Okay. Now, are these -- what are the
credentials of these staff?

A. You know what, I am a contract employee. I do
not have that information.

Q. Okay.

A. But I know that they did work when I observed
Dr. Brigham doing procedures during my interview and

during the afternoon I spent observing procedures with

location.
Q. Okay.
A. And I imagine all of their personnel paperwork
ié there.
Q. Okay. Now, you said you instructed staff to do
A. One of two things. Get the emergency  room

phone number so I could speak to the emergenéy room

doctor to tell them that we had an incoming‘patient.‘rAnd
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the other one to get the patient dressed and in a

wheelchair into the POV.

Q. Okay.

A. And to hook up the Pulsox as well as the vital
sign.

Q. Okay. Now, who was responsible for starting

the IV access?

A. I started the IV access.

0. Okay. Now, who went out and talked with the
family while this was occurring?

A. Okay, while this was occurring, after I started
IV access and I had one of the assistants get her dressed
and the other assistant getting her -- getting the phone
number for me, I actually am the one that went out to the
family and spoke to them and told them to please follow
us by POV, that there had been a complication, that I was
taking her to the emergency room for further care.

Q. Okay. Now, what was Dr. Brigham during --
doing during this time frame-?

A. I can honestly, Ms. Farrelly, he was standing
off to the side, because I took control of the situation
and I got my.patient to the emergency room. If'you
really want tb'know the truth, he was just standing off
to the side, as he did in the emergency room.

. Q. - Okay.

24
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A. Because I was the one that briefed the
emergency room doctor as to what had transpired at‘the
High Street location, and then I went back and forth
between talking to Dr. Gill and then checking on the
patient in the E/R room. And then once the mother came
back with the insurance information, I told the boyfriend
to sit with the mother in the waiting room while Diamond

Brewer was being stabilized —-

Q.  Okay.

A. -— and to provide information for the intake
clerk. |

Q. Okay. - Now, what was the patient’s condition
when the staff were getting her dressed and at the —-- at

the Elkton location?

A. She was still —- I mean, she was still under
anesthesia, so that’s why it took both aides to help get
her dressed.

0. Okay.

A. But that’s why -- when I went out to talk to
the family, then I came back, I helped them get her
dressed, I saw that the IV line had been blown. I did
not wait to try to put in another IV access. 1 said
let’s get her into the car and,get’to the emergency room.
The emergency rooﬁ - and‘I will speak‘to the emergency

room doctor. I dialed the emergency room as we were
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getting into the POV.

Q.- Okay.

A. And T said -- that’s when I told Dr. Brigham
drive the car.

Q. Okay. ©Now, I guess -- I'm just trying to
figure out, now, when was -- in the material you gave me,
that you faxed to me, I did review it. And we talked
about you’re unfamiliar with the qualifications of the
staff at Elkton. That’s correct?

A. Right, because, like I said, I am a contract
employee. I am contracted to do abortion procedures. I
have nothing to do with the staff that he brings with
him.

Q. Okay.

A. Or their human resources, what their
credentials are, you know. I read their name tags, and
they are to assist me.

Q. Okay. Now, in the materials that ydu gave —-—
that you had faxed up to our Board, there’s a page here
called surgical counseling record.

A. Okay, hold on. Hold on.

Q. Okay, sure.

‘AL Okay, sb I have Exhibit 1, which is the
informed consent for abortion after 14 weeks. I have

that.
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0. No.

A. Then I have Number 2, which is surgical
counseling record.

Q. Yes, that’s the one I'm referring to.

A. Number 2, uh-huh.

Q. I just had a question, because the date of the
form is 8/9/2010, but then it’s crossed off and changed

to August 12 of 2010.

A. Okay.

Q. Do you know who crossed that out?
A. No, I do not.

Q. Now -—-—

A. But this, like Ibsaid, all of this paperwork is
done one to two days before when the patient -- it’s dong
during initial intake, where they do the ultrasound, the
lab, the laminaria insertion, all the consent forms are
done one to two days before the proceduré. And then
they’re followed up with the doctors at the New Jersey
location.

‘Q. Okay. So, this would be something that would
have been completed in New Jersey?

A. Right. The only thing I complete and to
clarify your record is that I have initial contact with
the patieﬁt and her chart and record as of August 13th.

: Q; Okéy. Okay. So, now, this isn’t your
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signature at all on this form —-

A. No.

Q. —— because you weren’t there.

A. No.

Q. Okay, understood.

A. My signature is the abortion record and the

progress note afterwards.
Q. Okay. All right, let’s go to that Exhibit
Number 5 from the materials that you submitted, this

abortion record. 1It’s titled Abortion Record.

A. The Abortion Record, okay.
Q. Okay. I guess I just had a few questions about
this. It says post size is 21.5 weeks, and I guess in 4

couple other places it’s like identified as 21.2, and
then a different place it’s 21.5. So, I guess why is
there so much inconsistency?

A. There’s only inconsistency by one week. It
depends on exaétly via the ultrasouna. And, so, what I
will do is I will try to fax -- I do have a copy of the
ultrasound, and what I will do is include that, and what
it -- basically what it says via the ultrasound and
versus what I feel when I do my physical exam.

Q.> Oh, okay, I understand. Okay.

A. But by my physical exam.

Q. Okay, okay, that makes sense. Now, the
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foot length and fills all this part in.

medications given in the middle of the page here, there’s
no time at all. Do you ever document the time that the
medications are given?

A. Usually -- usually, we -- I mean, usually we
do, like if I do a separate progress note like I did in
this instance.

Q. Okay. But not on -- this is actually a form
provided by Dr. Brigham?

A. Yeah, this is part -- this is a typical
abortion record that I have seen in all the other charts
via the American Woman’s Services.

Q. Oh, okay, all right, that’s helpful. Thank
you. Now, on page 2 of this abortioﬂ record, the
examination of products of conception, is that a portion
that is usually completed?

A. Yes, .once the abortion is completed, and T
don’t know what the other doctors do, but I always look
at my fetal tissue. I do that in Utah, and I do that
when I perform procedures in Marylénd. I actually look
at the tissue and then they have a separate clerk or

whoever actually who does the tissue weight and fetal

Q.  : Okay.
A. So, I actually absorb -~ observe and make‘sure

I have all fetal parts before I finish my paperwork.
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A. Just a few of my comments, this patient was
immediately sent via POV to the E/R.

Q. Okay. Now, is there a reason that you didn't
call an ambulance?

A. We didn’t call an ambulance. I personally
didn’t call an ambulance because I knew that the
emergency room was down the street and I would be the
one, I could take her myself or take her by POV guicker.

Q. Okay.

A. Because she was stable vital sign-wise. There
was no drop in her Pulsox, and so from that standpoint,
she was stable. So, tﬁat’s why I said okay, what’s the
quickest way to pull up and get her there, and I said
POV, and that’s when I looked at Dr. Brigham and I said,
you drive the car, I'm going to monitor her, I’m going ty

talk to the E/R doctor on the way.

Q. Okay.
A. It was a judgment call.
0. Okay, understood. Now, you had attached in

your material Diamond’s informed consent. You don’'t --
do you do a new informed consent on the day of the
procedure in Elkton? Or you just go with the one from
New Jersey?

A. I go with the one from New Jersey, but if you
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notice, I always discuss with the patient before I put
them under anesthesia, and I'm very clear about that.

0. Okay.

A. You know, the risks that are involved, and I
actually use the word hole in your uterus or uterine
perforation. And a lot of”people don’t understand what
perforation means.

Q. Right.

A. Especially an 18-year-old female. And then I
ask them, you know, do you want to, even though you’ve
had procedures and three’s probable fetal demise, because
they do, according to protocol from other charts that I
looked at in Elkton, do make sure that there is fetal
demise before they even come to me, I ask them, do you

want to continue with the procedure before I even touch a

patient.
Q. Okay.
A. To allow me to take care of you and examine you

and do you still want to go ahead with the abortion
procedure.

Q. Okay. Now, what type of —-- you keep referring
to it as POV, what does that stand for? Personal
vehicle? |

A. I'm former military, it’'s personél vehicle.

Q. Okay, okay. Now, what type of vehicle was it
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that Diamond was put into?

A. Ms. Farrelly, it was a car that was drivable.
0. Okay.
A. I'm sorry, you know, I have a patient who I

want to get to the E/R. If he had the keys, it was a car
that was drivable.
Q. Okay.
A. Because I know it was one of the cars that they

had driven down from New Jersey.

Q. Okay, so it wasn’t your —— your personal
vehicle?
A. No. I usually get there an hour before,

because I come from Virginia.

Q. Okay.

A. And drive up from Virginia, and I usually meet
them there around -- between 9:30 and 10:00.

Q. = Okay. Okay. So, it was a car that Dr. Brigham
had the keys to. It wasn’t your personal vehigle?

A. I just -- this is what I basically told him,

get a vehicle, we’re taking her to the E/R now.

Q. Okay.
A. I remember saying that.
Q. Okay.

A. Make it happen.

Q. . Okay. Now, you mentioned that you explained
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be placenta or products of conception or pregnancy.' And,

. . procedure.

the risk of the hole in the uterus. Now, did you think
that the extent of Dh complications were more than
the uterus?

A. No. All I know is that I observed ex-uterine
tissue and to any abortion doctor, they are -- they need

to be further looked at and taken care of and the

procedure needs to be term -- stopped at that time.
0. Okay.
A. You just immediately stop what you’re doing,

and that’s what we did. I said, shut the machine off,
we’re transporting her out.
Q. Okay. So, now, did you observe any kind of

small bowel complications at that time?

A. That’s not possible from looking via a
speculumnm.
Q. Okay.

A. So, I noticed that when I checked when I said
every one to two minutes I stop suctioning and look at
what’s in the vaginal vault. In the vaginal vault, I saw

extra-uterine tissue that is not what normally I see to

so, the only other recourse it could be is bowel. And

any abortion doctor knows that and you stop the

Q. Okay.
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A. You just -- and you stabilize the patient and
you have them further taken care of by either a general
surgeon or an OB/GYN.

Q. Okay. So, you’re not trained at all to repair

any kind of uterine perforation?

A. No, I'm a family practice doctor.
Q. Okay.
A. I am not an OB/GYN.

Q. Okay, understood.

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Now, you state in your response that the
patient was stable.

A. (Inaudible) .

Q. Can you tell me what —- whatA—— how did you
evaluate that she was stable at that time to bring over
in the private vehicle?

A. Oh, basically I had continuing monitoring of
her blood pressure and heart rate and 02 sats.

Q. Okay.

A. I was looking to see if, one, she was bleeding
out, meaning that the heart raﬁe increases and the blood
pressure decreases. Or was she having an embolism,
meahing-that the 02 sat wéuld desat or go down.

Q.I O.kay .

A. Uh_-hllh .
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0. Now, was she dehydrated at that time?

A. No, the patient was not dehydrated at that
time.

Q. Okay.

A. Via vital signs. Dehydration is usually

indicated by change in vital signs to include increased
heart rate and/or increased blood pressure. Like I said
we were only 10 to 15 minutes into the procedure, even
though the patients are normally -- nothing by mouth forx
an hour or two before the procedure, the patient did not]

exhibit any signs of dehydration.

Q. Okay.
A. Nor was there any extra bleeding.
Q. Okay. Now, does Doctor -—- have you met Dr.

George Shepard at Elkton?

A. Dr. George Shepard at Elkton?

Q. Yeah, he’s an oider gentleman.

A. An older Indian gentleman?

Q. Oh, I'm not sure. I just didn’t know I you meft]

Dr; Shepard at Elkton, at the Elkton location.
A. I do know that while I was doing procedures on
the 30th, we did have two visiting doctors.
| Q. ‘Okay.
A. bAnd one was —- was an older Indian gentleman

and a younger African-American woman.
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Q. Okay. Now, can you tell me about your follow-
up? I guess you had called the -- T guess you talked
with Dr. Aslam.

A. Yes. So, basically, like T said, when the
patient was stabilized, I left with Dr. Gill my name and
as well as my phone number. And I told her that after I
finished doing procedures that I would be calling to
check on the patient. And about -- within, let’s see, by
3:00 I had been contacted by Dr. Aslam, and he had
informed me that there had been a complication, that she

was being taken to Johns Hopkins.

Q. Okay.

A. Within the next five to ten minutes.

Q. Okay.

A. And, so, he confirmed what T suspected.

Q. Okay. Now, did you have follow-up from any
Johns Hopkins physicians?

A. Yes. I actually spoke to -- and I believe this
was in my notes. TLater on thaf - well, let’s see, wait
a minute, no, no, it’s not in this note, but in my
statement, I list that I had spoken to the -- one of the
assisting or actual attending doctors, a Dr. Kratz from
Johns Hopkins Hospital. And she said that she’svthe one,
I beiievé, thét did the ~-- that she was the OB/GYN and

that Dr. Christiansonv(phonetic) was the surgeon who did
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the bowel resection and asimosis, and she said that the
patient was stable and that she had informed the mother
that the patient did not require a hysterectomy nor a
colostomy.

And my main questions to were is she still abl

W

to produce children, and so this I asked her -- the
doctor lots of questions, you know, how is the patient
doing, how is she stable, how big was the perforation,
where was it located, you know, how much bowel had to be
resected, did she require a colostomy. And, so, we
talked in reference to that.

Q. Okay. Now, I think you mentioned earlier, this
is definitely a known complication of abortions, correct

A. Unfortunately, vyes.

Q. Okay. T guess --— now, what -- what happened
following that? vYou guys went back and you still had one
more patient, is that correct?

A. Yes, we still had one more patient that was —-
actively needed to be taken care of.

Q. Okay. Now, are you there on both Wednesdays

and Fridays?

A. No, I'm only there on Fridays.
Q. Only Fridays, okay. And it’s every other week?

A. Yes.

Q. ‘ Okay. S0, now you were there July 30th and
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then so it would have been two weeks from then, which ig

the August

August 13t
A.

-— let me

calendar.

Q.

A.
0.
Saturdays,

A.

other clinics for American Woman’s Services in Maryland.

Q.

understanding. Okay, so, on Fridays you’re at Elkton?

AL

13th date. Now, have you been back since
h?
Since August 13th, yes, I had clinic this past

check my dates so far. I'm just pulling out m

Oh, vyeah, that’s fine.
Okay, so, I was there on the 20th and 21st.
Of July? Oh, of August.
Of August.
Okay, 20th and 21st.
And then the 13th.
Okay.
The 14th. I was not there on the 6th and 7th.
Okay.
And I was there on the 30th and the 31st.
Of July.
Right.
Okay. So, now, the clinic operates on
as well, or you were just in the vicinity?

No, I work at other locations -- I work at

Oh, okay, I'm sorry. I didn’t have that

Right.

=
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0. Okay. So, then --

A. And I believe they use the location on
Wednesdays, as far as my knowledge, that the Elkton
location is used on Wednesdays and Fridays.

Q. Oh, okay. So, now what location are you
working at on these other dates?

A. I work at the Baltimore office;

Q. Okay.

A. And at the (inaudible) office.

0. And I'm sorry, I didn’t get that part.

A. The Baltimore and Frederick office.

Q. Oh, okay, Frederick. And that -- I'm guessing

those are Saturdays?

A. Yes.
0. Okay.
A. Because I'm only -- I usually am only in town

Thursday, Friday, Saturday.

Q. Okay, now, what are the -- are they the same
clinic hours on Saturdays?

A. No, each clinic has their different session
hours.

0. Okay. So, for instance, what are Baltimore’s
session hoﬁrs? |

‘A. They.ﬁsﬁally start between 9:00 and 10:00.

Q. Qkay; Anderederick is later in thEmdaY?
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A. It’s in the afternoon.

Q. Well, what time would that be?

A. Usually after 4:00.

Q. After 4:00 p.m.? Okay-

A. Mm—hmm.

Q. Okay. Now, did you have an interaction with
the Elkton Police Department on August 20th?

A. T’ve had two altercations, actually, with the
Elkton Police.

Q. Okay.

A. The first time in reference to D“B-
I was in the middle of doing procedures, they came into
the clinic, and I believe one of the staff members went
out and told them that Dr. Riley was doing procedures an
that if they could talk to me afterwards. And, so, then
after the procedures were done, I went out and talked tdg
them. And I presented my ID, as well as my Maryland
identification card.

Q. Okay.

A. Basically -— I told them I couldn’t give them
any medical information in reference to Ms. B-
because that’s a violation of HIPAA. But he told me thg
there had been a complaint filed with a possible criming
investigation and is this a legitimate‘business. I said

—- and basically I game him paperwork showing the
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heated, - I can actually say. And I said -- I told them,

American Woman’s Center website, and I said here’s the
phone number to call. I will call and get you their
license number, because I had checked myself before I
start a job, whether they have a devout business, and so
I got the license number and I gave it to the Officer
David that was on duty, as well as the Sergeant Lunberg
that was on duty. Ahd they asked about any other doctors
on the premises, and that’s when I said there is a Dr.
érigham, and they said can you get him, and that’s when ]

went in the back and Dr. Brigham was gone.

Q. Okay.
A. He had left the building.
Q. Okay. Okay. So, Dr. Brigham didn’t tell you

he was leaving?

A. No.

0. Okay. So, did the police ever have an
opportunity to talk with Dr. Brigham?

A. Not at that interaction that I know of. And I
—- and I told the police, they said look at the premises
once the patient was in a personal vehicle in order to
protect herkidentity.

Q. Okay. And did the police stay'and do that once
the patient was finished?

A. Yes. I took them around. It was very kind of
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license number.

you have to respect the patients’ privacy. So, I made
sure that the patient was in recovery and I let them walk
through the clinic, and then I asked them if they had anj
more questions. I gave them my information on how to
contact me in Salt Lake, as well as my cell phone number
They had access to my ID, as well as my Maryland license
And I had provided them with the address of the main
clinic location in the Voorhees location, as well as the

phone number, and I had obtained for them the business

0. Yeah, where did you obtain the business license
number from.

A. I actually just called. I called and got the
business license number.

0. ‘From Voorhees?

A. Yeah.

0. Oh, okay.

A. Yeah.

0. Okay. ' Now, you said that you produced a
Maryland photo ID?

A. No. I produced my Utah driver’s license --

Q. Oh, okay.

A. -— and my'phyéician license.

Q. Oh, okay,»undérsﬁood.

A.  Because they were questioning -- they said that
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- the one,tﬁét_accompanied»them back to the_clinic.~i

they were there questioning whether this was a legitimat

1

business and whether we were legitimate doctors. And I
said I'm a legitimate doctor. Here’s my driver’s
license; here’s my Maryland license.

Q. Okay, okay. Now, do you have -- have you

applied for a DEA number that’s attached your Maryland

work?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay, have you received that yet?
AL No, I haven’t.
0. So, now, if you have to write prescriptions for

patients, say in follow-up or pain medications, whose DEA
number are you using?

A. Oh, I don’t use anybody’s DEA number. I
recommend ibuprofen and/or Tylenol.

Q. Okay, so you have not written any prescriptions

to any American Woman’s Services patients?

A. No.

Q. Okay, so, no prescriptions written at all in
Maryland.

A. No. If they receive any pain medication

prescriptioné, it would have to be from the New Jersey
location, either during their follow—up or Dr. Brigham .

would provide it for them, I would imagine, since he was
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‘patients were due to arrive, and I was reading. A plain-

another POV or a detective shows up and there are six-

Q. Okay.

A. And he’s a licensed New Jersey doctor.

Q. Okay.

A. As far as I know.

Q. Okay. So, now, can you describe your second

interaction with the Elkton Police?

A. Okay, for my second interaction with the Elkton
Police occurred just this last -- let me look at my
calendar again to make sure I have the right date. Okay
so that would have occurred Friday, the 20th.

0. Okay.

A. So, basically, I got there two hours earlier,
because I kind of suspected by the way I was treated that
they might try to impede procedures based on the Elkton
location, and sure enough, as I was there, they’'re -- I

was drinking my coffee and it was about two hours before

clothes detective comes up and approaches my car and asks
for identification. And I said, who are you? And I got
her identification, I took a pictufe and I got a copy of
her badge, and I gave her my identification. She then

went to her police car, and the next thing I know,

pélice cars, as well as the chief of police.

Q.  Oh, okay. So, what happened then?
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Jersey.
0. Oh.
A. That’s why I went early to see if there would
- be -- basically what I consider a picket line.
Q. Oh, ékay. Okay. Now, how many patients were

A. So, basically, they start questioning me about]
Maryland law and illegal criminal activity and an open
criminal investigation. And then that’s when I say,
unless I'm being subpoenaed or unless I'm being arrested
I need to have either an attorney present or you need to
let me leave the premises. So, basically it took them
about 10 minutes to finally let me leave the premises,
because they had blocked in both entrances and exits.

0. Oh, okay.

A. So, they had patients who were going to be
coming to this location who are in active need of
physician care, and you’re impeding me from taking care
of the (inaudible) because I had been notified by Dr.

Brigham that they were already on their way from New

coming down from New Jersey on the 20th?

A. Four.patients.

Q. Four?‘ S0, what location were those patients
treated at?

A. They were initially treated at the —— once

.again,_the'VOOrhees clinic location, that’SIWhere all-thé,r
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initial Elkton patients are treated.

Q. Oh, okay. Maybe I just jumped the gun. What
happened? Did you actually end up going back to Elkton?
I was wondering what happened to the four patients from
New Jersey.

A. They were so advanced I had to -- this is why 1
was so adamant about leaving the parking lot is because
they were in active -- how do T describe this -- they
were an active process of possible delivery, you know,
and/or in need of stabilization.

Q. - Okay.

A. We went to the Baltimore location, which is
approximately about 45 minutes away.

Q. Oh, okay, okay.

A. So, I called the Baltimore location, I had Dr.
Brigham call the Baltimore location and have them get
ever&thing ready. I got there about an hour before they
got there, and I set everything up to perform procedures,
which they do have the equipment fof, and I worked that
day.

Q. Okay, okay. Yeah, because --

A. (Inaudible) .

Q. ~Now, what -- you said there was a seérch
warrant for Elkton? |

A. ’Wéll, this 'is what I received this:morhing is
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that I had spoken to Dr. Brigham, and then he casually

mentions to me that there is an application and affidavi

for search and seizure warrant that I knew nothing about

and a search and seizure warrant. So, I said, you need
to send this immediately to me, because if I need to see

legal representation, I need to see exactly what my name

is on. And this is when I have this information in front

of me, which is very disturbing. And that’s why even
though I want to freely give information to the Maryland
Board, the accusations in these warrants are pretty
serious.

0. Yeah, again, I haven’t seen them. I know that
it was reported that the police went in and served, I
guess, a search warrant. But I didn;t know exactly what
was taken during that search warrant and, you know, what
they ended up -- what the basis of the warrant was.

A. Well, the basis of the warrant for the —-— of
the warrant and I freely disclose this, because I am
shocked by it, it is basiéally murder.

Q. Oh, okay.

A. So, please excuse me for being more guarded
than when I spoke to you yesterday.

Q. . Okay. So, what did they take from Elkton? . Do
you know? | |

A. No,.I don’t. I imagine they might have taken .

K
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fetal tissue, because -- because I know they keep them
until they’re disposed as hazardous waste.

Q. Okay.

A. And/or if it needs to be taken to the
examiner’s office, so I imagine they must have found
fetal tissue and taken them to the medical examiner’s
office. That’s what I imagine. But this affidavit that
I'm looking at in front of me uses that Qord “murder.”
And that’s why, Ms. Farrelly, excuse me that I am more
guarded today.

Q. No, no, I mean, our Board has nothing really td
do with the -- whatever criminal investigation, so, you
know, I'm just trying to figure out what happened and,
you know --

A. And that’s -- and that’s why I didn’t cancel

our interaction today. So, you know, because I want it

to be known my participation in the procedure of l-

B- And like I said, after I followed up via
télephoné conversation with the OB/GYN at Johns Hopkins,
I didn’t get a. chance, even though I tried to contact the
surgeon,.that was near impossible, I did follow up within
24 hours with the»patient and her mother.

And then afterwards there was a question about
the fetal death certificate with Dr. Elizabeth Purcell

(phonétic), and: she actually did the fetal.demise
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.that’s'when'he mentioned the partzabout the warrant and

certificate.

Q. Okay.

A. And then that was the end of my contact. And
then we’re here where we are at now.

0. Okay. Yeah, I mean, I only have a couple‘more
questioné. I guess you must have keys to the Elkton

location because you open the office. 1Is that correct?

A. No, I do not. That’s why I was in the parking
lot. T -- like I said, I’m a contract employee.

Q. Okay.

A. I do procedures with the consultation of Dr.
Brigham. Like I said, I review the chart -- my first

contact with these patients are when they actually come
into the Elkton office. That’s why I was waiting outside
in the parking lot, because T don’t have keys to the
location.

Q. Okay, okay. So, that’s Dr. Brigham, okay.

A. Keys to any of the locations. USually Dr.
Brigham has his own staff at each location, i.e., office
manager, medical assistants, a phlebotomist.

0. Okay. ©Now, have you spoken with Dr. Brigham
about the Board’s investigation?

A. No, not really. I did speak to'him_yesterday,

and I told him that I had a telephone interview, and
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have like a list of the patients and times? Is’that

seizure, and I was like, well, I need a copy of that.
Q. Oh, okay.
A. And that’s -- I had this morning via e-mail.
Q. Okay, okay. Now, the only thing I'm a little
confused about and maybe you can help clarify, you statse
that the procedure started at around 11:00, but theﬁ the
patient didn’t end up in the E/R until like 1:00-ish.
Al Well, as far as I -- from my notes -- okay, I
see what you mean, because, yeah, because my procedure
notes say 1:00, so I must have done my first patient at

11:00 a.m. My first patient was at 11:00 a.m. I need t

1}

correct that. My first patient must have been at 11:00.

And then D-B-was the second patient

afterwards, because each patient usually takes about, youy

know, half an hour to 45 minutes. And then we clean up
the area, so it would sound as though her procedure
probably started between 12:00 and 12:30.

Q. Okay. Okay. So —-—

A. I'm just making corrections.

Q. Okay.

A. My first patient was probably at 11:00.

0. | Okay. Now, with --

A. And it Was -

Q. - would that be written down anywhere? Do you
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provided to you, you know, like that day or —-

A. No.
Q. Okay.
A. Even in my -- the additiocnal information I have

in my chart, usually there’s a recovery log, and I’d have

to look and see if the copy of the recovery log —-- and we

just use initials, we don’t use the complete patient
name .

Q. Okay. Now, I guess, you know, you don’t have
to answer this, but are you concerned about Dr. Brigham

disappearing on you?

A. Yes, I am. I was hoping -- yes, I am, because
that -- to me, that’s unprofessional.
Q. Okay. Well, as you know, he doesn’t have a

Maryland license. So, you know, and you say he’s just
consulting, that he --

A. Right. And that’s -- and that was my
understanding, that he was just to consult. Thét’s why I
did the proCédures and, you know, I feel comfortable
doing abortions. Like I said, I trained during my
initial year of training, you know, up to‘20vweeks, and I
did one there on-site, you know, doing up to 24 weeks

and/or if sométimes ultrasounds are off by one or two

‘weeks, I wanted to have another doctor there to consult

~with. But like I said, IT'am —— I am -- I am concerned
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know that even though I'm family practice, I spent a

OB/GYN rotations, as well as my surgical rotations. I
did tréinifpr-an amount of time at the Planned Parenthood
- -in Denver, in Colorado Springs, as well as with Dr. Madre

Shaw {phonetic), who does up to 20 weeksAin,Salt Lake

when a doctor does not follow up with patient care.

Q. Okay. And how do you think Dr. Brigham didn’t
follow up?
A. For example, I was kind of surprised that sincH

3

he had the initial interaction with the patient that whe
it took time to have this patient go to the emergency

room, Dr. Brigham was pretty much hands off.

Q. Okay.
A. And, so, I —- I am -- and I'm the type of
doctor I -- my patients come first, and like I said,

within 10 minutes, she was in the emergency room with an
IV access being monitored, as should be done when a
complication is noted.

Q. Okay. Okay. Do you have anything else that
you want our Board to know during its ‘investigation that
ydu think will help evaluate your case?

A. Well, yeah, the one thing I want the Board to

whole year of training dding abortions under an OB/GYN,
Dr. Ravula Berkey (phonetic), who is also one of my

attending, followed the residence, you know, during my
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o takihg her right down the street via wheelchair, and I

City, Utah.

Q. Okay.

A. I'm drawing a blank. I can’t remember his lasf
name. Dr. —- at Mount Olympus (inaudible) abortions up
to 14 weeks. And I've been doing this for five years.
And, knock on wood, I have never had a complication.

Q. Okay. So, this was your —-

A. And this is, you know, my first complication,
and I felt as though I handled it to the best of my
ability and that the patient was quickly taken, once a
complication was noted, taken to a higher level facility
where she could be appropriately treated.

Q. Okay. Now, did Dr. Brigham suggest not callingd
the ambulance or it was all you who decided to just take
the patient in the private vehicle?

A. I think I did -- remember asking Dr. Brigham
hOW’SOOH do.you think we can get an ambulance here, and
he probably said four to five minutes, and I was like,
she»needs to go now.

Q. Okay.

A. And, so, I (inaudible) she needs to go now, and
I want to be with her to monitor. And like I said, it’s

the hospital truly a block and a half away. We almost

even considered just taking her not even in the POV, just
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said, no, that would be uncomfortable and a violation of
the patient’s privacy.

Q. Okay. Now, who considered just taking her in
the wheelchair?

A. Dr. Brigham.

Q. Okay, that was his suggestion, and I was like,
no, we need to preserve that patient’s privacy, and we
can get there just as quick in the POV.

0. Okay.

A. I said -- and I said, get the car and drive.

Q. Okay. Understood. Okay.

A. And I did tell the patient’s family that we
were taking her via POV and that would be the quickest
way for them to follow immediately after.

Q. Okay.

A. And I was on the phone call -- on the phone

with the emergency room doctor, and I think at that time

- I had already had the phone number given to me by the

other assistant that was there who I told to get the
hospital’s E/R line.

Q. Okay. Okay. All right, well, I think I’'m
going to -- I'm sorry, go ahead.

A. The only thing I would change is the 11:00 on

page 1 of my statement, the 11:00, that’s probably when I

~started the first patient. And Dfjulilf®5gmsmm was the
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second patient on that day. So, usually there’s a one-
hour turnover by the time we complete a procedure, clean
up the room, review the chart, talk to the patient, so 1
would be more like 12:00, 12:15. But that’s the only
thing I would change in my statement is I would change
the time to 12:00, 12:15.

0. Okay.

A. Because there is a one -- there is usually one
hour between each patient, staggered.

Q. Okay. Okay. Well, I'm going to stop the
recording, if you don’t have anything else. I’m done, s(

it’s around three —-

A. Okay. Oh, I do want to make clear --
Q. Oh, sure.
A. -- I did not know that there was a subpoena for

the chart, so I will fax over immediately within the nexft
hour the complete chart that I have.

Q. Okay. Qkay.

A. And T don’t know i1f there’s anything more at
the New Jersey location, bgt that’s where the original
chart is kept.

0. Okay. And I --

A. Where all the original charts are kept. .

| QQ‘ And I -- as I said, I’11 fax that subpoena to

you tomorrow morning. and, you know, if you can just>trywv
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to get the record from Dr. Brigham, that would be
helpful.

A. Okay, so I have to mention that just from my
conversation with Dr. Brigham, at the time that this
procedure was completed that evening, I made a copy of
the chart, and that is what I'm going to fax over to youl

at, let’s see -- what is your fax number?

0. (410). I can’t think of it, -maybe?
-

Q. I believe so.
S
0. No, you know what, Dr. Riley, let me just stop

the recording. Hang on one sec. Okay, it’s now
approximately 3:05 my time.
(Whereupon, the interview was

concluded.)
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1 3
1 1 doctors into our own car. We didn’t know where we were
2 2 going, so we ended up in Blkton, Maryland, in another
3 e S
4 3 building -- clinic building.
5 4 Q. Okay. Now, when|{- when Dr. Brigham did arrive
6 MARYLAND STATE BOARD OF PHYSICIANS 5 . in New Jersey, did he com¢ in the waiting room and say,
7 ' 6  okay, this is what’s going |fo happen?
g 7 A. Well, yes. Then he JZthered us all to the door
19 TELEPEONIC INTERVIEW W.TH C.B- 8  outside and told us where wt were going io ride -- 1ii
11 9  what car.
12 10 Q. Okay. And, so, whyd did -- you followed the
13 11 nurse?
1‘5‘ HELD ON AUGUST 21, 2010 12 A. T followed the nurse|in the BMW, the white BMW.
16 13 Q. Okay.
17 14 A. She was first, then it pvas the Indian couple.
18 CONDUCTED BY CHRISTINE FARRELLY 15 Q. Okay.
19 16 A. And, then, it was the| jwo Spanish mixtures
g(l) 17 along with a Spanish girl whp belongs to Dr. Brigham’s
22 18  crew.
23 19 Q. Okay. And, then, there was another nurse - J
24 20 can’t remember her name.,
25 21 A. Yeah, there was a nule -- an Indian nurse. I
22 don’t know if she rode with [pr. Brigham or not.
23 Q. Okay.
24 A. Tknow it was like fivid cars.
25 Q. Okay. Now, do you|recall what vehicle Dr.
2 4
1 PROCEEDINGS 1 Brigham rode in?
2 - - - - - 2 A. Ithink it was the vehigle with the Florida
3 MS. FARRELLY: This is Christine Farrelly, 3 tags.
4 compliance analyst with the Maryland Board of Physicians. 4 Q. Okay. Now, did say to you, that’s the
5  Today is Saturday, August 21st, 2010. The time is a 5 doctor I saw yesterday or?
6 little after noon and I am on the phone with Ms. C. 6 A. Yes. But when he firs{ came in the building, I
7 Bl : 7 was going to the bathroom and fhe - I never seen him
8 EXAMINATION 8  before. All he said was, how i she? And I was like --
9 BY MS. FARRELLY: 9 Itumed to him, and I was like] how is who? So, he kept
10 Q. Ms. B@lif you could state your name for 10 - walking and he went in and sa|§l something to them other
11  therecord. 11 girls.
12 A. (g 12 Q. Oh, okay. So -
13 Q. Okay, thank you. Now, you’re the mom of some 13 A. And that’s when I askef] her and she said, yeah,
14 one named DYEEDE G s that correct? 14 that -- that he was the doctor that prepped her the first
15 A. Yes. ’ 15 day, which was Thursday --
16 Q. Okay. Could you tell me your experience, 16 Q. Okay.
17 starting August 13th when you arrived at Dr. Brigham’s |17 A. --the day before.
18  office in New Jersey? 18 Q. Okay, August 12th. New, what happened when you
19 A. Wearrived -- me, DYillland her boyfriend -- 19 arrived down in Elkton, Marjjland?
20 and we went into the building. They put usin a waiting 20 A. Okay. We -- everybody parked, everybody got
21 room along with two other girls. We had to wait for like 21 out the vehicle. Then, all of a 4gdden, I seen this
22 about an hour -- 22 other doctor. She was an Afri«lI‘x-American. She came and
23 Q. Okay. 23 I-- Pm pretty sure she came and unlocked the door to
24 A. --until he arrived. And, then, they gathered 24 that building we went in. ' '
25  everybody up and then we had to follow the nurse and the 25 After everybody. went in,|| never knew they had
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5 7
1 locked the door. So, we all went in the back and we all 1 there’s a room where Dr. Brigham’s receptionist -- nurse
2 went through our, you know, the little rooms -- the 2 orreceptionist was.
3 little rooms they put us in. 3 Q. Um-hmm.
4 Q. Okay. 4 A. Because she kept co ing in and out of that
5 A. You know, separately. And they took the Indian 5 room, in and out of that roon]. I guess they wanted to
6  girl first, because she was in the most pain. 6 make sure the door was loc d, because she told me the
7 Q. Okay. 7 nexttime I go out and come [hack in to lock the door,
8 - A. -Yeah, they put, you know, they had a 8 Q. Oh, okay. So, now, What did you -- did you ask
9  television, you know, the -- asked if we needed anything 9  questions while s in the procedure room?
10 to drink, you know, stuff like that. 10 A. Well, I kept hearing Hgr screaming and
11 But, in the meantime, they gave them girls some 11 hollering. And, then -- I me , it did take long. It
12 type of pills, you know, to start the contractions, 12 took like two hours, I think.
13 because after awhile they all was hurting. 13 Q. Okay.
14 Q. Okay. 14 A. Butall I kept hearing Mas her screaming and
15 A. Um-hmm. 15 hollering. And I told the lady that worked there, I
16 Q. So, now, it was you and I‘ and DR - 16  can’tstand this. I got to leavélout. So, T'kept going
17 A. Yes. 17 out to the hall, you know, to tHe other part of the
18 Q. - and you just were waiting during the first 18  building, you know, in the frot.
19  procedure? 19 Q. Okay.
20 A. Yes, because -- we were all in our little 20 A. You know, because I didn’t want to hear her --
21 separate little booths. 21 Q. Screaming.
22 Q. Okay. Now, who came out to get DN’ 22 A. --and why is she screathing now, because they
23 A. Well, one of the -- one of the -- well, he had 23 putherto sleep.
24 two or three other nurses with him. 24 Q. Right.
25 Q. Okay. So, one of the nurses - 25 A. You know?
6 8
1 A. You know, to help. 1 Q. Right. So, now who -- which doctor finally
2 Q. Okay. So, one of the nurses came to get 2 came out of the room to talk to you and DR -
3 Diamond? 3 A. After -- both of them —
4 A. Yeah, after the Indian woman gotdone. Yeah, 4 Q. Oh, both of them?
5 they came and got Dygiiiilil okay? DY it’s your 5 A. --Dr. Brigham and Dr. Rilpy.
6  tumn, something like that. 6 Q. Okay. And, now, did the¢y come and get you or
7 Q. Okay. And, then, once she was in the procedure 7 did they just -- what did they sap?
8  room, did you start getting nervous about how long she 8 A. No, they came - because tiie room is right
9  was in there? 9 there - right by where we were --|bur little visiting
10 A. Did we? 10 room. They opened the door and thme out, and they said,
11 Q. Yes. 11 we’re having complications. We gbt to take her over to
12 A. Yes. 12 Union Hospital.
13 Q. Okay. 13 Q. Okay. Now --
14 A. Because I know the Indian worman was in there 14 A. And I'm like, complicationd with what? And
15 not even that long, because I remember -- I remember | I5  they said something about the uter{k.
16  had went out to try to find a restaurant or a McDonald’s 16 Q. Okay.
17 or something -- somewhere to eat. But when I came back 17 A. And they said, it’s okay. THey said they had
18  --1did get something to eat -- when | came back the 18 to hurry up and get her over there ¢ lickly and they
19 door was locked? 1 couldn’t getin. I had to wait until 19 wheeled her out the room in the wheelchair.
20 I, you know, somebody — 20 Q. Okay. Now, when Dr. Brigham and Dr. Riley came
21 Q. Oh, okay. 21 out, who was the one who was do.ig the talking?
22 A. - it’s a-- when you first walk in, you walk 22 A. They both were.
23 intoa-justlikeina hallway. 23 Q. Oh, they both were? Okay
24 Q. Oh, okay. 24 A. Well, wait, wait, wait, no, befause Dr. Riley
25 A. And, then, onto -- to the ri ght, there’s -- 25 was really doing -- I think she was doing most of the
2 (Pages 5 to 8)
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9 1
1 talking. 1 he said -- Dr. Brigham sai{ -- in -- in Elkton.
2 Q. Okay. 2 Q. Okay.
3 A. But he kept, you know, intervening. 3 A. And the building Was right across the street.
4 Q. Okay. So, he interrupted her and said -- 4 Q. Oh, okay. Now, djd Dr. Brigham -- did he tel|
5 A. Yes. 5 the staff there who he wils or what his name was?
6 Q. Okay. 6 A. Tthink so. You kndw, after -- after all that,
7 A. Yeah. o ) 7 1 just went in the room witlh my daughter.
3 Q. So, now, other than saying, big problems, what ~ 8 Q. O, right, right. fhatis understandable.
9 else did Dr. Riley and Dr. Brigham say to you? 9 A. And, then -- and, plls, talking to the head
10 A. Well, that she’ll be all right; she’ll be all 10 Security and all the nurses|jind -- who else -- it was so,
1T right. We just have to hurry up and get her over to the 11 I'mean, I was like devastatdd
12 - to the other hospital. And I said, well, in the 12 Q. Oh,’m sure. I’njsure. So, now, they kind of
13 wheelchair? Why don’t you call the ambulance? And they I3 --Dr. Brigham and Dr. Rfley - refused outright to call
14 said, no, we’re going to wheel her over there because the 14 an ambulance?
15 Indian -- the small Indian nurse -- had her both -- both 15 A. Yes. They -- I said|fall the -- I asked them,
16 of her legs up while somebody was going to wheel her. 16  Isaid, call the ambulance. |[And they said, no, we’re
17 ['said, you can’t wheel her over there like 17  going to take her in the car
18 that, call the ambulance. That’s why I said, call the 18 Q. Okay, okay. So, njgw, when You got to Union,
19 ambulance. And he said, no, well, we’re going to just 19 was -- when you got to Ugfon Hospital, was Dr. Riley or
20 put her in the car. 20 Dr. Brigham in D room in the ER with her?
21 Q. Okay. 21 A. They didn’T'go 1n, ng. They -- they were out
22 A. And she was out of it. She couldn’t even 22 by the nurse’s desk.
23 stand. She was just out of it. Eyes were rolling in her 23 Q. Okay.
24 head and she didn’t know nothing. 24 A. All of a sudden, all [} you know, the nurses
25 Q. Okay. So, now, who put DIJJJJi¥n the vehicle? |25  came out and was calming gje down. The case -- the case
10 12
| A. They both -- all of them. 1 manager --
2 Q. Okay. Dr. Brigham, Dr. Riley and, then -- 2 Q. Um-hmm. i
3 A. And that Indian -- little Indian nurse -- ' 3 A. --management she wa} -- they all were so nice.
4 because she went in the back with Dr. Riley holding 4 Q. Right.
5 D- hand, and Dr. Brigham drove over there. 5 A. They all tried to help fge, you know, calm me
6 Q. Okay, okay. Now, what happened when you got 6  down and stuff.
7  over to Union? 7 Q. Right, right,
8 A. Okay. Let’s see. Soon as we pulled up -- they 8 A. They were all good -- fhey all were great.
9 pulled up on the wrong side of the emergency -- you’re 9 Q. Okay. Now --
10 supposed to go round the corner. But, in the meantime, 10 A. They couldn’t believe|you know, they never
1T Security -- they had Security that had already seen us, 11 seen nothing, you know, nothitg like that happen before
12 out there. 12 in that hospital.
13 Then, they, you know, because we couldn’t get 13 Q. Oh, okay, okay. Now|did Dr. Brigham and Dr.
14 to that area -- that door. 14 Riley just leave Union, you ngver saw them again or heard
15 Q. Oh, okay. 15 from them?
16 A. So, somebody came and opened the door. 16 A. No. Well, they stayed there for a little bit.
17 Q. Oh, okay. 17 They were real -- very nervous| They stayed there, |
18 A. And then I seen all the head Security and other 18 think, while they were taking DR (o 2o get like
19 nurses come up to that door, and I was, you know, that’s 19  tests, like CT-scan. :
20  when they had Security came out and asked Dr. Brigham, 20 Q. Okay.
21  who he was. Because he said all he seen was him looking |21 A. They immediately tooklher in.
22 athis badge. I remember -- I remember that. 22 Q. Okay.
23 Q. Oh, okay. 23 A. Yeah. And started worling on her. They
24 A. And Dr. Brigham -- but Dr. Brigham said that -- 24 immediately did that. Yes, the){did.
25  the head Security asked him, where is your clinic? And 25 Q. Okay. So, now, did D| Aslam and Dr. Gill, at

For The Record, Inc.

(301) 870-8025 - www.firinc.net - (800) 921-5554

3 (Pages 9 to 12)

1Y
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13 15
1 Union Hospital, did they tell you definitely like what 1 A. Maybe, maybe.
2 wasgoing on? 2 Q. Okay.
3 A. Yes. After the CT-scan and stuff, they said 3 A. And, then, she gave fhie a number and say, call
4 that her uterus was -- had a hole through the back, and 4 her -- told me to call her, yoy| know, to let me know how
5  something about the intestines. 5 is.
6 Q. Okay. Now -- 6 Q. Okay.
7 A. That they messed her up. . 7 A And -- but she kept -{[l think she had galled |
8 Q. Right. Now, wher Dr. Brigham and Dr. Riley ~ 7|8 7 the hospital once or twice, - T
9  came out of the procedure room, they didn’t tell you -- 9 Q. Thisis Dr. Riley?
10 did they tell you how severe —- 10 A. Yes.
11 A. They didn’t say how severe it was until | got 11 Q. Okay.
12 to Union. 12 - A. Because they told me|fhat she had called there.
13 Q. Okay. And they basically were telling you just 13 Q. Okay. But, have you|-- you haven’t called her,
14 don’t worry about anything? 14 have you? -
15 A. Yes. 15 A. DidI--yes - yes, 1d I call her.
16 Q. Okay. 16 Q. Oh, you did? Oh, oK y. What did you tell her?
17 A. Exactly. 17 A. Well, was that okay?
18 Q. So, you didn’t know Rimmmul® s condition when 18 Q. Oh, ne, no, no. I’m :I bt -- you don’t have to
19 you were trying to get her to the hospital, you just saw 19 ask my permission. I was just curious.
20  that she was out of it? 20 A. Oh, okay.
21 A. Yes. AndIknow they said they had -- they 21 Q. No, no.
22 would have complications. That’s all they told me. They 22 A. Tjusttold her -- I didni{{ tell her that she
23 didn’t say nothing about the intestines and they did not 23 got flown to John (sic) Hopkin and I didn’t tell them,
24 say anything about how severe that uterus -- how they 24 well, you know, about her intd mtions. Ididn’t tell her,
25  damaged it, no. 25  you know, what she had done th my daughter. Ididn’t
14 16
1 Q. Okay. And, then, were you on the emergency 1 tell her nothing.
2 room ramp when they were getting I' out of Dr, 2 Q. Oh, okay. But you {id call her? i
3 Brigham’s vehicle? 3 A. 1did call her and told| her that, oh, yeah,
4 A. Yes. 4 she’s okay. She’s going to --{[ didn’t think -- I didn’t
5 Q. Okay. Because someone else had reported that 5  think I should tell her.
6  Dr. Riley wanted the Emergency Room physician to come 6 Q. Right. The conditiol of DG’
7  out? 7 A. Yeah, just in case, be¢huse I know all this is
8 A. She --I don’t know because -- 8  going on right now, and I didfft want to warn her, you -
9 Q. Okay. 9 know, what she’s up against.
10 A. --Idon’t know. 10 Q. Right, right. So, whi{t day did you end up
11 Q. Oh, no, that’s fine. 11 calling her?
12 A. Idon’t know that. 12 A. Okay. Ithink it’s on miy -- let me see - when
13 Q. No, that’s fine. I mean, you can only tell me 13 did this happen, on Friday?
14 what you know. 14 Q. Right.
15 A. Oh, yes. 15 A. Probably Monday.
16 Q. Yeah. 16 Q. Oh, okay, okay.
17 A. Because I was like in and out, in and out, 17 A. So, she had called me bhck, also.
18  before they even brought like, you know, wheeling her in. 18 Q. Oh, she did?
19  Then, when they wheeled her in -- I don’t know. Some -- 19 A. Yes.
20  some part I can’t remember. 20 Q. Okay.
21 Q. Oh, no, 'm sure it was a whirlwind. So, I -- 21 A.  And I told her that - wHat did I tell her? 1
22 Iappreciate anything you can remember. 22 said, okay, usually, you know, that you didn’t finish it,
23 A. Okay. So, they -- they stayed for not even 10 23 that Union Hospital had to finigh it. Isaid, she had to
24 minutes. A 24 go to John Hopkins. 1 did tell hpr that.
25 Q. Oh, maybe 10 minutes? Okay. 25 Q. Oh, okay, okay.
4 (Pages 13 to 16)
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I A. Sothey finished it. Isaid -- and I said 1 Q. Okay.
2 something about getting my money back. That’s what I 2 A. Tthink it was - it might have been Tuesday.
3 told her. 3 Q. Oh, okay. Andldid he call you --
4 Q. Oh, okay, okay. 4 A. Thave -- | left - mean, [ still have his
5 A. Yeah. That’s $2,000. 5 numbers on my Caller I, I never erased them.
6 Q. Right, right. And what did she say to that? 6 Q. Oh, really.
7 A. She said that she didn’t have nothing to do 7 A. Yeah, I said, I’m [fot going to erase them
8 with that, that Voorhces -- the Women’s Medical - _ 8 Recausel might need.it, ypu know; ifthey*said they
9 Q. Okay. i 9 calledme. ™
10 A. -~ Voorhees, you know, I would have to call 10 Q. Yeah. No, that Wpuld be really helpful if I
11 there, but I never called there because Dr. Brigham 11 could get the number h¢(called you from and, then, the
12 called me. 12 specific date, that would probably really help us.
13 Q. Oh, Dr. Brigham called you? 13 A. Okay. Iwill have 10 call you back.
14 A. Yes, the next day, and was concerned about 14 Q. Yeah, you’re on the phone right now, so I
15 D— and was asking me questions. And, also, I -- I5  understand.
16 and, again, I did not tell him that, you know, what 16 Now, what else did Dr. Brigham say to you when
17 happened, that, you know about the intestines -- but,you |17  he called?
18  know what? He did mention,something about her 18 A. Well, basically, tha{’s it, because he didn’t -
19  intestines. 19 - well, eh was telling me -tfokay, well, I’'m glad N,
20 Q. So, they knew that? 20  isallright, and I hope she§ going to be getting
21 A. ButIdidn’t know it at, you know, when it 21 better. You know, stuff lik that.
22 first happened. 22 Q. Okay. Did he say (that in any way, like, he was
23 Q. Oh, okay. 23 responsible for what had {‘appened?
24 A. But, then, he did bring that up. 24 A. No, he - no, he did|hot.
25 Q. Oh, he mentioned DRy intestines? 25 Q. Okay.
18 20
1 A. Yes. He talked about her intestines. 1 A. Because | didn’t, yfu know, I didn’t, you know,
2 Q. Oh, okay. 2 say too much to him. i
3 A. Ithink -- but I know we were talking about 3 Q. Right. Now, did H¢ say anything about, like,
4 that. But one day after that he had said for me -- when 4 she’s--she’s a patient of|mine and that’s why I’'m
5 ome out -- for me to come there and he will 5  concerned, or anything lilte that?
6  write a check to her, all she got to do is sign a release 6 A. No, he did not.
7  --arelease something. 7 Q. Okay.
8 Q. Oh, okay. 8 A. Now I’m looking at|}- I do have Dr. Brigham’s
9 A. For her to get her check -- her money back. 9 number right here. I’'m look ing at it right now.
10 Q. Okay. Oh, so he wants You to sign a release 10 Q. Oh, okay.
11 saying he’s not responsible for anything? 11 A. S
12 A. Oh, that’s what it is? A release for something 12 Q. Okay.
I3 to get her money back. 13 A. --@. This is the Humber he called me from.
14 Q. Right. Welj -- 14 Q. Okay, (i ?
15 A. Something like that. 15 A. Yes.
16 Q. --yeah, sometimes a release means that you’re 16 Q. And what would thH area be like, 609?
17 not going to hold him responsible for anything. That’s |17 A. No, 856.
18  whyIwas-- 18 Q. Oh, 856, okay, thanlis,
19 A. Oh -- but we didn’t go. 19 A. But they have an 800 |-
20 Q. - oh, no, I was just curious, because that’s 20 Q. Right.
21 usually the term “release,” that’s usually what that 21 A. —an 800 number, alsq.
22 means. That’s why T was curious. 22 Q. Right, right. I know they have the 800.
23 Now, what day, exactly, do You remember Dr. 23 A. Do you want that?
24 Brigham calling you? 24 Q. No, no, I know the 8{{0 number,
25 A. Monday or Tuesday. 25 A._Oh, okay, all right.
5 (Pages 17 to 20)
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1 Q. Is there anything else that you can tell me 1 CERTIFICATE OF TRANSCRIBER
2 about Dr. Riley and Dr. Brigham’s behavior, like when 2 :
3 they came out -- 3 I, Diane Quade, do hdieby certify that the
4 A. Soon as they came out from trying to do her 4 foregoing proceedings were lanscribed by me via
5  procedure, they looked very nervous. 5 audiotape and reduced to ty ewriting under my
6 Q. Okay, okay. 6  supervision; that I am neithel counsel for, related to,
7 A. Yes, they were. _ - . __1 7 _ noremployed by any of the Harties to the-action in which -
3 Q. Were they like lookinFat each other, you know, ' | § "~ thes€ proceedings were trand¢ribed; and further, that I
9  whatI mean? Or what -- what kind of nervous behavior 9  amnot a relative or employég of any attorney or counsel
10 were they doing? 10 employed by the parties herdto, nor financially or
11 A. Tcan’t explain it, I don’t know. 11 otherwise interested in the oufcome of the action.
12 Q. No, no, that’s fine. I didn’t know. Some 12
13 people show certain signs. 13
14 A. Oh, well, did you talk to my daughter already? 14
15 Q. Oh, yes, I did, ma’am. 15
16 A. Okay, because what she told me, because I went 16 DIANE QUADE, Transcriber
17 back there, she said Dr. Brigham was in the back patting 17
18  her, like, shoulder. 18
19 Q. Right. 19
20 A. Yeah, while Dr. Riley was doing her. 20
21 Q. Right. 21
22 A. And I think she said, m&d you think 22
23 Dr.Riley was -- it wasn’t -- it ¢ t have been her 23
24 first time. _ 24
25 Q. Her first time doing an abortion? 25
22
1 A. Oh, she said, it seemed like he was training
2 her. ‘
3 Q. Oh, right, right. Yeah, I- did tell me
4  that.
5 A. Um-hmm.
6 Q. Is there anything else that you think would
7  help our investigation in terms of Dr. Brigham or Dr.
8 Riley, any other information?
9 A. Well, you know, that’s all I know --
10 Q. Okay.
11 A. -- from what I experienced, that Friday -- last
12 Friday.
13 Q. Okay.
14 A. But 1 wish I never heard of them.
15 Q. Okay, I understand.
16 MS. FARRELLY: I’m just going to stop the
17 recording right now. So, it’s been about 20 minutes
18 we’ve been on the phone. Hang on one second.
19 (Whereupon, the interview was
20 concluded).
21
22
23 - - - - - -
24
25
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write 18:6
wrong 10:9

=
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Y

yeah 3:21 4:13 5
6:4,4 9:7 12:23
14:16 16:3,7 1
18:16 19:7,10,]
21:2022:3

yesterday 4:5

youw’re2:13 10:9
18:16 19:14

i §

S

$2,00017:5

1

10 14:23,25
12th 4:18
13th 2:17

2

2022:17
20101:14 2:5
211:14

21st2:5
239720:13

6.

60920:16

6 (2011
9 20:14

we’re8:11 9:14]1

8

80020:19,21,22,24
85620:17,18
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SMP FAMILY Mt DIC INF & HOMFCARE

NICOLA RILEY. M.D. St. Marks| Hospital, Central Medical Bldg.
801.747-0922 Tel /Appt. 1220 East 3900 Souch, #4A
801-747-0924 Fax . Salt Lake Cicy, Utah 84124

From: Nicoia Riley, M D.
SMP Family Medicine
1220 East 3900 South, Suite 4A
Salt Lake City, Utah 84124

To: Jeri Warhattig, Deputy Attorney General
NJ Office of the Attorney General
Division of Law
124 Halsey Street, Sth Floor
Newark, NJ 07701
(973) 648-7487 (Tele)

(973) 648-7782 (Fax)

Date September 1, 2010

Reference: Dr. Steven Brigham (Bureau File #10-3717-10-1097)

To Whom It May Concern:

‘The following information Was‘requested on August 31, 2010 by Mr. Lizzano via a ndtarized
- Certification: . '

L. Your identification and licensure in Maryland.

1, Nicola I. Riley, MD am a licensed, board certified family medicine physician, in thd [state of
Maryland.

License #: D71213
Issued: 07/20/2010
Expire: 06/30/2011

2. Adescription of the procedures You performed on patients DEIIP EQlPr. SO |(25 weeks),
NC (18.4 weeks) at Dr. Brigham's office in Elkton, MD on August 13, 2010. '

The procedure on DR S@EF s enclosed in my abortion log and three page profedure note
addendumy; @xhibit #1. Procedures on patients SD and NC were similar but without affy noted
complications. All original charts are at the New Jersey clinic location in possession of the
atfending physician, Dr. Brigham. I do not possess copies of these charts.

3. Identify all medications provided to these patients (pre-medication), where that wds given
and by whom. ’ ; .

I canonly identify premedication given to OO SO (i.c. doxycyline and Tylenof #3) at
the New Jersey clinic location prior to transport to the Maryland clinic on August 13, 2010. Itis
on that date that had initial contact with the patient and their family, chart review and verbal
patient consult/review with Dr. Brigham on the prior visits at the New Jersey location.|Please see

my copy of __ chart, exhibit #2. Alf other charts are in the possession if Dr.
Brigham,

“A Partnerchin in Healrheare”

. STt e e N R ORI
. - N - . e T ;




SMP FAR

NICOLA RILEY, M.D.

801-747-0922 Tel/Appt.
801-747-0924 Fax

St. Marks| H

TOMECARTE 2

ospital. Central Medical Bldg.
1220 East 3900 Soutch, #4A
Salc Lake City, Utah 84124

“ Reference: Dr. Steven Brigham (Bureau File #10~3717—10—1097)

4. Please explain "fetal demise" determination Prior to beginning your procedurd.

Fetal demise was determined by reviewing the charts priot to the ahortion proced|ire, i.e. was
fetal cardiac he

art beat was observed on previous day ultra sound at the New Jerge

5. Please provide 3 physical description of patients SD & NC.

y clinic or if

Digoxin was administered the previous day at the New Jersey clinic by the attendi g physician.

het husband.
ember,

6. Identify who was present during these procedures and who was in possesdi
medical charts for these patients upon completion of the procedure on August 13, »
a copy of your contract with Dr. Brigham.

Dr. Brigham was in consultation during all three procedures as well as two of the N
clinic medical assistants. As stated during the injtial previous questioning by Mr. Liz;
charts are property and kept at the New Jersey clinic, where each patient recefved {

workup, fetal demise initiated, consent obtained and final follow up care given. My ¢

Dr. Brigham is included as exhibit #3.

Please contact me at u/(!'/urther clarification is needed,

Nicola Riley, MD ™~ ( <~9/ 9/, / to

I
CC: Richard Lizzano, Investigator
NJ Office of the Attorney General
DCA Enforcement Bureay
2201 Route 38, Suite 201
Cherry Mill, New Jersey 08002
Tel: (856) 482-4360
Fax :( 856) 482-7618

“A Partnershio in Healthcare™

n of the
10. Include

Jersey
no; all

eir initial
bntract with







Case: 2011-0118

August 22, 2010
To whom it may concemn,

I,'Nicola Riley MD, am a contracted employee of The American Women's -
Services, cooperate offices located in Voorhees, New Jersey. | I:erformed Al voluntary 2nd
¢

trimester D & E on the patient, Dimmsset Dassmms. o0 August 13
Maryland clinic location. Her initial work-up, care (laminaria/ultrasound/|
surgical & informed consent, and fee payments were performed/ collected
2010 at The American Healthcare Services, PC. Clinic in Voorhees, New
(Enclosure #1, #2, #3, #4)

b
L

The procedure was initiated and performed at the Elkton, Marylan
August 13"‘,_ 2010 by myself, the attending physician. I introduced myself
consulted the patient and her family in attendance (mother and boyfriend).
chart before commencement of the procedure and assessed the patient’s vi
physical exam. The patient was in stable condition and once again I info
of the risk (Enclosure #5, abortion record). Patient was allowed to ask que
anesthesia was administered on August 12® 2010 at approximately 11:00
(CORRECTION: APPROXIMATELY 12:00 PM.). Patient agreed to proc
with the D& E.

As noted in the procedure note (Enclosure #6, three page progress
procedure was stopped when extra uterine tissue was noted in the vaginal
family was notified that we would be transporting the patient to the nearby
blocks away. The patient was dressed, IV access attempted and immediatel
via POV with Dr. Brigham, the consulting physician on duty and myself in
the nearby hospital two blocks away . [ was in telephone contact during the
the nearby emergency room with Dr. Gill, the on call doctor. The patient’s
followed in their POV The patient was being monitored by portable vital s
by the accompanying medical assistant. The patient history and possible co
was reported to Dr. Gill upon arrival to the ER.

, 2010 at tHe Elkton,

work,
n August 12,
rsey.

clinic on

d then
reviewed the
signs and

d the patient
ions before
M

d forward

tranSported
ttendance to
-5 min drive
ily

The patient was then further stabilized by the ER staff and [ instructed the

. patient’s mother to retrieve insurance information for the ER intake clerk. (

patient was stabilized by the ER staff, | then returned 1o the Elkton clinic to|f

procedures on the remaining patient. At approximately 2-3 pm, [ was contad
Islam, the Union hospital Ob/GYN that the patient had a uterine perforation
‘being transported to John's Hopkins hospital.

¥ Correclia Copy




Case: 2011-0118

Later that evening I was contacted by Dr. Kratz from John’s Hopkins hospital

that the patient had Successfully undergone a smail bowel resection with

stomosis by

Dr. Christiansen and posterior uterine repair. | filled Dr. Kratz in on the spfcifics of my

initial part in the prégnancy termination procedure.

Afterwards, I followed up with the patient and her mother via telepfjone contact
within the next 48 hours. The patient’s mother had concerns of hospital cos} and refund

of the initial fees. I directed her to the administration offices at the initial p

ient intake
clinic in New Jersey and the hospital social/insurance case manager. F urtheTfollOw up

was then done by the New Jersey, clinic supervising staff and physician. I {
contacted by Dr. Elizabeth Purcell, on follow paperwork for the fetal demig
which she agreed to complete '

Please see enclosed procedure notes/records and informed consent.

Please contact me at -for further questions.

Nicola Riley, MD

en was
e certificate,
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“ ABORTION RECORD
AR TION RECORD
Patient Number: Z;g Date: f/éz
—_—g i :

el e -hfgyg;zgj;gwgssd@v‘id;i;;_i-ht%p&ti@m the abortivnashéﬁims%rﬁm'esled, Id I
i s sutficiently matuce and intelligent (0 understand the nature and conseqs

believe she

nces of her

condition and the procedure. The patient was referred here with laminariy inserted. Her

general physical exam was within normal limits,

Vital Signs: Z , |
B/P:Lzﬁ[@}’ulse'y 02 Saturationzloo Temp:

PRE-EVACUATION EXA M:

Vagina [ [ ] Other: :

Cervix . [JOther: ... .. . Dilated: - -cqll . .
Adenexa { ] Other:

Uterus 1] Other:

[]ANT (4POST SIZE. %weeks

PaipA anagcmcnﬁ}ra cervical blotk: 1% Lidocaine wit asopressin and|oxytocin

¢ ~ [¥Midazolam wglV [Mentanyl Jog ug IV [ketamine 3 cc IV

%‘ 0 observation. Her medicat conditiop and vital signs Ydid { ] did not remain
normal limits at all times during tfe procedure. '

' [] Osher
0 M atient was continuously mouaitored vsin Se oximetry and vigiial
{0 < ¥V The p gp ry I§

ithin

tenta.

EN
The patient [ ] did {{ did not, Spontancously deliver the fetus and pla

Adjunctive measures used 1o facilitate the delivery of the fetus, the aH
procedure and/ogto stop bleeding:

stetrical maneuvers
Forceps use
_ Tp curettage of the endometrium
/" Vacuum aspiration of amniotic fluid, blood, parts, etc.
CNS decompression using 6mm vacurrete
Uterine Massage '
Silver Nitrate cauterization
_ Monsel’s Solution application

Cornmen"t's: /4 6&19(/
7z

N

—_—————

%
|
E
:

ortion

Ry 3 ZA
b & Crnpuciiy
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e ABORYION WUk, raf8 1l Chdst st [J00
. Examination of Products of Conceplion:
A. Tissuc Weight e am
B POC grossly identificd:
T TR T e G e s \étul‘ f““"*‘{’l:YwESu»4 : {}-NO~ tr.] ? PRI Y T S e gl
Sac: [1YES [INO (1?
Parts: -~ []YES [INO [}?
Decidua: [1YES [INO {]?
C. Fetal Foot length: mm
D.  Final Estimated Gestation: wks. LMP,:
‘/

[ } Repeat urine HCG showed:

[ ] Tissue to Lab )

[ ] Quantitative Serum B-HCG sent to Lab

[ ] Ectopic Pregnency Fact Sheet given to patient ,

Comments; f’/n,/ ID [,'L \/1& % J

¢
7 /

¢ Pt. Should seek follow-up care: [ ] Routine F/U in 2 wcck@A m
MEDICATIONS ORDERED

. ) Y
/\/ bQ (1 MicroRhogam [] Rhogam L1 Ofher | | % R
' MEDICATIONS DISPENSED | %,4, s
- : s
[ ] Doxycycline 100'mg po BID x 6 da /\J/‘;Q N ~,//

{ 1 EES 250 mg po QID x 7 days

[ ] Other: i

MEDICATIONS PRESCRIB@/ 7‘// A
ul Tbuprofen 400-80Q mg D x 3 days PRN cramping
[ ] Ferrous Glucon 0 mg po BID x 90 days, begin completion of post-op|gntibiotics

500 mg 1 tablet po BID x 7 days

Additional Comments:
Physxcxan s Slgnaturc W 5//7/ {0
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GRACE MEDICAL SERVICES

PROGRESS NOTE
CHART NUMBER: /S— - s - FEISGL

sz o PATENT-NAME:
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Patient’s Name: . Date: 52/&2(2 4
Vital Signs: Bl':\DL{/ IO . Pulse: 25 Temp: l {_’,j

#.0‘1"0‘.*1.*#‘.0**OOOQI‘*!"O‘!l#00“.‘#"‘0#4#.#O‘*###'.‘#i!.

have discussed with the patient the abortion she has requested and [b
rhattire and intefligent to understand the dature and consequences of her decision |

]

(A L)
M

The patient was placed in the lithotomy position. The perineum was prepped an

On Pelvic Examination:

Vagina ( NL [ ] Other:
Cervix [ L [ ]Other:
Adenexa [ JWNL [ ] Other: . _
Uterus [ L [ ] Other: [ JAnt[ IMid[ ]Po
Approximate Size of Uterus: ' ‘
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 (21 Q2

i‘*l*#*#‘ﬁ‘**!t# AL LRI AR AL Y Y SR R P T I Yy |

[ ] Periumbilical prep was dore. 10cc of 1% Lidocaine injected subcutaneously
guidance a 7-inch spinal needle was inserted through the skin and into the fetus.

M
cc. (500mceg/2cc) Digoxin was injected to cause fetal demise.
"#’l****##*&*‘#*4#*"‘*#t#*tt####t**‘ttt#t**#tt#t**#i****tt***‘i;ﬁi

Laminaria insertion: Total number of Laminaria Inserted:

23

hart#: /: Ség .

NEERRIERUG G ISR b

lieve she is sufticiently

draped.

St

24 25

WREORERUBKEEE UM R & ¢k

Under ultrasonographic

Rk Rk bk

LOCAL/TWILIGHT

g 10mm Laminaria Japonica
8mm Laminaria Japonica
6mm Laminaria Japonica
5mm Laminaria Japonica

[ ] Membranes ruptured.
[ ] Umbilical chord ligated
[ ] Lamicel Smm. #
[ ] Lamicel 3mm. #

4mm Laminaria Japonica
3mm Laminaria Japonica
“2. 2mm Laminaria Japonica

Sterile gauze packing was then placed in the vagina. Patient was taken to the re¢

observation.

Medications administered and/or prescribed to her:
___ Misoprostol tabs, ___ x 200 mg, p.o. started at am/pm. and |
___Misoprostol tabs (___ #) placed p.v.
___ Mifepristone tabs 100 mg p.o. at
___ Hydrocodone
Dilaudid
%Doxycyclmc 100 mg B.L.D.

"¥_ Other: ;.JI,,,,_[ 4 32
Retum 1 l//"‘/{\/ office on ¥ /1 /{ at { am/pm.

S . -‘-ﬂ-ﬂﬂﬂnﬂﬂ-ﬂlﬂ-—-‘!-

¥

MD signatuge. 4

rbvery room for

repeated every hrs.




Jestec Non-Surgical Abartion

e e - Second .
Nilmc'-_Q-__ Chart # 7S6;2 . Date: 81 / Z// O

Age: . LMP:

**600**0#‘&**0&0&#0&# 0“!##!*‘*#0‘0..##

— e .
04*0'0##*“"**#000#*&#‘ 000&#!0#0*#*0“"0“0

LABORATORY TEST RESULTS:
VITALSIGNS: BPLOY | 2. Pulse &5 Temp 274 . HQY f /‘L»Wa;&@ oy,

BLOOD:  Hct/Hgh: -~ . RH_AVEY

URINE:  Gh/ Pm%, LSPT: . Signature of Lab Teh.
itu-u-«u-uw\n#ntcu«'w-«un kunnurunoanu00&«««4-"‘#:*:&#«1;“:"*N**M-tt*"*ﬂﬂih*n

Non-Surgical Abortion — Delivery Notes . Date: - Time: Start _End:

revealed the gestational agg/'to be wks LMP.

Ultrasound examination
[ ]did, [ 1did notfonfirm fetal de ise.

On a 2™ ultras und examination

The patient was brought int the exam room and placed in {fic lithotomy positiog. The patient was noted
to be having contractions. Thg gauze and laminaria were fhanually removed.

Vagina { 1WNL .
Cervix * [ ]WNL /. Dilated:____cm: Hffaced: %
Adenexa [ JWNL ‘ .

Uterus { ] WNL / [ JAnt[ JMid [ ] Ppst  Size: wks.

. 1% lidocaine with vasopressin and oxylpcin.

nitored by pulse oximetry, VS readingf, cardiac rhythm and

The patient was contimnously
#ie} awake and tatking throughout the defvery. -

visual observation. The patient rem

BP: [ . Ps: . O18at:

_ Cardiac Rhythm:NL/ABN . Stafflat:___.

The patient [ J did or }/] did ‘not, spdntancously deliver the fetus and pjacenta.

. Adjunctive measug./s used to facilitate\delivery of the fetus/placenta apdlor to stop bleeding:
Obstetrical’ maneuvers :
Forceps Assistance to delivery.
Sharp ¢lirettage of the endometri

————

-, blood, placenta, or retain d 2OC.

CNY decompression using a 6mm vgcurrele

Utérine massage.
Silver nitrate cauterization
onsel's solution application

——.

Followingdflivery, the patient sat up, dressed herself, and walkéd to the recgvery area.

Comments!




Anverican Healtheare Seeviees, INC,

Retoyeey Rovor Recoed

arllf R ,(géé;“

Patient Npune:

-(
ot Weelf IS

Date: yie Of Procedure: L - 1
e *
[ Bleeding Cramping Comments
Intials | Min | Mod ] (tvy | Mia | Mad (yy
7 L0
I
(Y7742
/
/
/ :
J 4
/ : J ’
[ ] Touproferv Tylenol administered for abdominal cramping
, (lbuprofen/Tylenol administrado para el dolor abdominal) .
Nourishment given post-abortion {Alimenta dado despues del aborta) ,
tged patient to stay for one hour (Inst6 ol paciente a permanccer por una hora)
" /1/ lastructed patient to follow-up with a 2 week visit ' '
(Paciente fue instruido a fEgresar en a scmanas para seguimiento) :
/| Verbal and written post-operative ins!mctions,cmecgcncy contact and 21 hour hotline .

/ number given to patient with &er understandiag
* (lnstrucciones verbales y escrita posoperativas, contacto da emorgencia namero

dado al paciente con su

coaprention)

de linea directa

Antibiotic given and-explained o pt. with pt’s understanding I5

{Antibidtico dado y

2xalicady al pt. con lt-comprangion de pr.)

.

I'have received the above information and medications:

© (Herecibida de informacion y medicinas)
. -

Additional Coamments: LV, started in

Ringer's Lactate infusing with

without any problems. P'atient Lolerated the procedure well and denics any,

discomlort. -

-/ Patiént Si
(La fima def |

arcu with
.- of Pitocin added. 1.V. was

Complaints or

1[Time”




American Healthcare Services, P.C.

Post-Laminaria Insertion Instructions

+ = just placed in the opening of your uterus is called laminaria. 1tis 2 type of seaw
compressed and prepared for medical use. Between now and the lime of your
absorb moisture and swell, opening your cervix in a safe and nalural way, This {§
your comfort and safety.

You have just completed the first step of your abortion procedure The matenij};F

at the doclor has
d-that is

ocedure it will

being done for

The laminaria is designed not to go oo far up into your uterus, so don't worry abgut the possibility
of this happening. It will in no way interfere with your using the bathroom. You should also not be
concemed if the laminaria or gauze packing falls out. If this does accur, just be sure to tell us when

you return lo the office. The doctor will remove the laminaria before he/she does

Do Not do Any of The Fo"owing Between Now and Your Appoint
-Put anything inside of your vagina
-Have sexual intercourse

-Use tampons
-Take a tub bath

your procedure.

ment ‘[ime:

You May Take Showers and you MUST take the antibiotics, which have beeg prescribed, as

directed.

We can be reached at our 24-hour HOTLINE at 1-800-ABORTION. Our answ&ring service can
bl

reach us at any time, so please do not hesitate to call if you are having any pro

ms before your

nex! appointment, such as severe (abor-like cramps, fever or bleeding. Do not b concemed about

spotting or having a yeliow discharge from your vagina.

YOU MUST BE ON TIME TOMMOROW. Also, you should have someone with }
you return home. It is important for your safety that you do not eat or drink any
prior to your appointment. THIS INCLUDES WATER, GUM AND CANDY. Also,
medication, drugs or drink any alcohol before your procedure without your docto

u who can help
ing for 8 hours

0 NOT, take any
okay.

The day of the pracedure, please wear loose fitting clothing (i.e., jogging pants, rz propriate

underwear, t-shirts). Do not wear many layers of clothing. You want to be as co
possible. There are also gowns available that you have the choice of using.

Remember that your abortion really begins when the laminaria is inserted into y
- Therefore, you MUST return for your procedure at the scheduled time. If an em
which will cause you to be late for your appointment, CALL US IMMEDIATELY.

You next appointment is schedule at 8 NO on & I "52( Q

dable as

r-cenvix.
ency arises
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Paticnt’s Name: g . Dalc: 87}/ _ / . Chpri#: /Séé "
Vital Signs: Bl’:\ OL\/ \][O . Pulse: g 5 . Temp: qj‘; .lj& :

T LAMLE Lesaprhesentarvense

tl‘tit*#‘ﬁll!lr#tt.t*##t‘##ttt.#tttttt‘l‘tt0*‘*01‘#*04‘*‘

havediscussed with the puticat the abortion she has requested and 1 b¢ jeve she is sutficiently

nhdf(ru and intelligent to understand the nature and consequences of her decision] - #e

The patient was placed in the lithotomy position. The perineum was prepped an{| draped.

QOn Pelvic. Examination:
Vagina [JaWNL [ ] Other:

Cervix 1 L ( ]Other:, .
Adenexa [ﬁNNL [ ] Other: .
Uterus { L [ ]Other: [ TAnt[ IMid [ ]Pgst

Approximate Size of Utetus:

‘3 1 15 16 17 18 19 (21 )3 4B
it*tﬁt###t*****#*#t#

t«tvv*stt*«#tt*#vm««*«***mc«*mt*m*txmitt*t*e***t***#**t*t*tt**tv
Under ultrasonographic

[ ] Periumbilical prep was done. 10cc of 1% Lidocaine injected subcutaneously
guidance a 7-inch spinal needle was inserted thcough the skm and into the fetus

cc. (500mcg/2cc) Digoxin was injected to cause fetal demise.

tt*t#tt#*¢¢t+**t+**+tw#**#t«t*#tn*#*tt#ttt*t*«s«tt#t«m#ttmtt*«rkttcm*t#t**t«ﬂtﬁt*t*#

Laminaria insertion: Total number of Laminaria Inserted: :[ LOCAL/TWILIGHT

_g__lOmm Laminaria Japouica [ ] Membranes ruptured.
__ 8mm Laminaria Japonica [ ] Umbilical chord ligate
6mm Lamiaaria Japonica [ ]Lamicel Smm. # :
Smm Laminaria Japonica [ ] Lamicel 3mm. #
4mm Laminaria Japonica
3mm Laminaria Japonica .
"3 2mm Laminaria Japonica

Sterile gauze packing was then placed in the vagina. Patient was taken to the rgcovery room for

observauon _

Medications administered and/or prescrlbed to her:
___Misoprostol tabs, x 200 mg, p.o. started at ______am/pm. ang

___ Misoprostol tabs (____#) placed p.v.
___Mifepristone tabs 100 mg p.o. at

___ Hydrocodone :
Dilaudid -

7Doxycycline 100 mg B.L.D.
¥_ Other: W o 3 | A /

'Rctum to l/""/{v VWi office on yll 3 at { am/pm.  MD signgture. n’

repeated every __ hrs.
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[ ] buprofer Tylenol ad ministeced for abdomin
(tbuprofen/Tylenal

number given to patient with her understanding

(Instrucciones verbales y 2scria posoperativas, contacto de emer

~ dado al paciente con su comprension)

Antibiotic given and-explained to pt. with pt's undérstanding
(Antibideico dado y explicade al pt. con la comprengiva de o)

[ have received the above intormation and medications:
(He recibido de inforinacian y med icinas)

‘Additiumll Comments: LV. started in

Ringer’s Lactate infusing with

without any problems. Patient tolerated the

discom fort.

al ccamping
administrado para el dolor abdominal)

Nourishment given post-abortion (Alimento dado despues del aborto)
Jiged patient to stay for one hour (instd af
Insteucted patient to follow-up with a2 week visit
(Paciente fue instruido a FEgresar en a semanas para seguimiento)
Verbal and written post-operative instructions. <

pacients a permanecer por una hora

mecgency contact and 2

gencia ndmero

| hour hotline

¢ linea directa

q

area with
of IMitocin added. V. was o
procedure well and denics any

/.

La fiana dcl

Patiént Sige

of

moved
Complaints or

K

Q.'l/b

Time




“you return to the office. The doctor will remove the laminaria before he/she does

American Healthcare Services, P.C.

Past-Laminaria Insertion Instructions

absorb moisture and swell, apening your cervix in a safe and natural way. This s
your comfort and salety.

The laminaria is designed not to go too far up into your uterus, s0 don't worry abg
of this happening. Itwil in no way interfere with your using the bathraom. You §
concerned if the laminaria or gauze packing falls oul. If this does occur, just be §

Do Not do Any of The Following Between Now and Your Appaint
-Put anything inside of your vagina

-Have sexual intercourse

-Use tampons

-Take a tub bath

You May Take Showers and you MUST take the
directed. '

You have just completed (he first step of your abortion procedure. The material fhat the doctor has
- justplaced.in the.opening of your uterus is called laminaria. itis a type of-seawegd ihat is
compressed and prepared for medical use. Between now and the (ime of your J dure it will

being done for

ut the possibility
hould also not be

sLre to tell us when

your procedure.

ment Time:

antibiotics, which have beg¢q prescribed, as

We can be reached at our 24-hour HOTLINE at 1-800-ABORTION. Our answE!ring senvice can

reach us at any lime, so please do not hesitate to call if you are having any prob
spolling or having a yellow discharge from your vagina.

YOU MUST BE ON TIME TOMMOROW. Also, you should have someone with )
you return home - |t is impartant for your safely that you do not eat or drink anyth
prior to your appointment, THIS INCLUDES WATER, GUM AND CANDY. Also,
medication, drugs or drink any alcohol before your procedure without your docto

underwear, t-shirts). Do not wear many layers of clothing. You want to be as co
possible. There are also gowns available that you have the choice of using.

Remember that your abortion really begins when the laminaria is inserted into y}trcewix.

Therefore, you MUST return for your pracedure at the scheduled time. 1f an em
which will cause you to be late for your appointment, CALL US IMMEDIATELY.

You next appointment is schedule at & ol) on_ éi ! %}l ®

ms before your

- next appointment, such as severe fabor-like cramps, fever or bleeding. Do not be concerned about

bu who can help
ing far 8 hours
(PO NOT, take any
5 okay.

* The day of the procedure, please wear loose fitting clothing (i.e., jogging pants, ’ifpr‘opn‘ate

ortable as

gency arises
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[ have beeq informed by the medica] SQtf of American Medica
i my best interes to remain oq the premises of (hejr office for at legft

Secvices, PC that it js

one_ hour after my

abortion procedyre. ['understand thyy this ecommendation is being made (o protect me b

allowing the medica| St to moqitor me for any possible complicatio
- tesult of my abortion procedure. | understand thye these complicatiors
bleeding, hemorrhagc. post-abortaf Syndrome, infectioq, as well as ot
- also understand that the potentia] Consequences of these complications
could include sucgery, loss of bectility, and/or death, Understanding
wish (o leave the office early, even though this s against my medical
hold American Medica Services, PC, theic doctors, or any of their st
€onscquences of my leaving early. ' B

S that might arise as

could include

et complications, |-

if left unteeated.

L of the above, | st
dvice. [ wil| por

Ft respoasible for the

Patient Name:

. .
[
Patient Siznatgre.




VITAL SIGNS: BP/E

e nene - ool Urimester Non-Sy zical Aborion.

/ y 9
Namc:@g_ Chart # 15’60\
Age: (.MP:

m#+¢ia‘¥ttti0¢¢¢*vt***¢‘d#ti*t‘t*ﬁ##ttﬁttOtititktti*##*¥‘0“0*‘*‘

LABORATORY TEST RESULTS:

al

Date: 8’/ / Qj/ O

Auke RS OEE RN RE

l’ul&u& "5 Temp: oA G
R~ €/

Hl““-\

Pa

’

BLOOD:  Hct/Hyb:

Glu/Pro 224

_7%_,@(}_7' LSP'f:______.

MAKRP A E R RN R G RN AN R R AR RS Rk RN R R WOk N

URINE: Signature of Lab Teg

| %
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Non-Surgical Abortion —Delivery Notes.  Date: . Time: Start “.End:
Ultrasound cxammatlon revealed the gestational agg'to be wks LMP.

On

22" ultrashund examination [ }did, [ )did notconﬁrm fetal defpise.

The patient was brought intdythe exam room and placed in {He lithotomy positiog. The patient was noted

to be having contractions. Th¢ gauze and laminaria were fhanually removcd

Vagina {.]WNL [ \ Other: )
Cervix [ JWNL [ NOther /  Dilated._____cm. Bffaced: %
Adenexa [ JWNL [ |®ther /.
Uterus [ JWNL [} / [ JAat[ JMid[ ] Bpst Size: wks. -
Pain Management: Paracervical block: 1% lidocaine with vasopressin and oxytgein.
[ JConscious sédation: mg Midazol ug Fentanyl. [ ] Other

The patient was coatinuously ménitored by pulse oximetry, VS rcadihgﬁl cardiac rhythm and
visual observation. The patient remaified awake and talking throughout the delivery.
BP:___/ . Ps:____ . O:Sat . Cardiac Rhythm:NL/ABN . Staff Int:

jcenta.

The patient [ ] did OrI[" ] did not, spgataneously deliver the fetus and pl

> / ' :
Adjunctive measure’s used to facilitate\delivery of the fetus/placenta andfor to stop bleeding:

Obstetrical’/maneuvers
Forceps dssistance to delivery.
Sharp curetiage of the endometri
Vacut{m aspiration of amniotic flu
_CN decomprcss:on using 8 6mm
Uterine massage.

flver nitrate cautecization
onsel’s solution application

currete

HFHHH

Following

. blood, placeata, or retained

défivery, the péxticnt sat up, dressed herself, and walked to the recoy
~ Comments!

pOC.

ry area.







- Doctor desires to accept such a contractual relationship, it is hereby. AGRE

PHYSICIAN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

B

PR EERENY

AGREEMENT made as of this the 720 4i&day of July, 2010 by and bgtween:

- “~Americen Medical Associates, P.C:, 2 Professional Corperation aut

practice medicine and sargery in Maryland, as well as Virginia Health Gro
Virginia Professional Corporation organized in Virginia and authorized to

horized to
p,P.C.a
ractice

medicine and Surgery in Virginia (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Professional

Corporatlon” or just the “PC”
AND

Nicola Irene Riley, M.D., holder of license No. D71213 authorizing
medicine and surgery in the State of Maryland, and who is in the process ¢
a license to practice medicine in Virginia, as well as any Professional Corpd
by said physician; (Hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Doctor™)

WHEREAS, the Professional Corporation desires to contract with t
and after July _, 2010 upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth|

1. The Doctor shall practice medicine, and shall perform the medica
in the Appendix, including abortion procedures, for the Professional Corpo
specified days and hours to be mutually agreed upon-

her (o practice

{ applying for
ration owned

He Doctor on
| and the
D as follows:

[|sexrvices listed
Hation on

2. The Doctor will be paid according to the following schedule for gbortions
performed upon thos€ patients who are paying dlrectly out-of-pocket for their abortion

procedure:

4S.00 per 12 week pregnancy and less

60.00 per 13-14 week pregnancy
100.00 per 15-16 week pregnancy
150.00 per 17-18 week pregnancy
200.00 per 19-20 week pregnancy
250.00 per 21-22 week pregnancy
300.00 per 23-24 week pregnancy
400.00 per 25-26 week pregnancy
500.00 per 27-28 week pregnancy
600.00 per 29-30 week pregnancy
700.00 per 27-28 week pregnancy
800.00 per 29-30' week pregnancy
900.00 per 31-32 week pregnaucy
$ 1,000.00 per 32-33 week pregnancy
$ 1,100.00 per 34-35 week pregnancy
$ 1,200.00 per 36-37 week pregnancy

PP YLD YD PGP PP

R
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"Week pregnancy" always refers to menstrual age unless otk

2. The Doctor agrees to insert cervical dilators ("Laminaria") wheJn medically
s ~i0dicated for her or other doctors who wili. perform.second trimester-ahort

Doctor will be paid $25.00 for each patient in which she inserts Laminarial.

3. The Doctor agrees to administer 1. V. Sedation when requested tltlr the patient

and medically indicated. The Doctor will be paid $15.00 for each patient
administers V. sedation.

Erwise stated.

ORS. 7 THE: -7 # v borgblmmn wice

which he/she

4. The Doctor agrees to perform gynecological examinations, inclu
operative examinations on any and all patients who have been scheduled fd
which he/she is practicing in the office. These post-operative examinations
patients who may or may not have had surgery performed by another phys
Doctor will be paid $25.00 for each patient she sees as an office visit.

" 5. The Doctor agrees that absolutely no additional fees will be paid
service which is rendered without a written request and a written response
become an amendment to this contract.

‘6. The Doctor will be responsible for obtaining her own medical malpractice

insurance. The Professional Corporation shall not be financially responsib
of the premiums. _

Dg post-
the time in
nclade
cian. The

o her for any
hich will then

e for any part

7. The Doctor agrees to appear and be ready to begixi seeing patien

which both parties agree is one hour after the first patient is scheduled. THe¢ Doctor -

agrees to be on time. If she is late, then after a 15 minute “grace period”,
agrees that she will be charged a late fee of $150.00/hour, prorated to ever
cover the costs of staffing and "lost" patients resuiting from the doctor’s ta

8. The Doctor acknowledges that the doctor is working for the Prof

Corporatjon as an independent contractor and as such shall hold harmless
the Professional Corporation, its individual shareholders, officers and dire

successors and assigns, from and against any and all liabilities, costs, dama

expenses, and attorneys' fees resulting from or attributable to any and all
and/or omissions attributable to the Doctor.

9. The term of this agreement shall be open-ended. The Doctor and|fthe
Professional Corporation agree to give eight (8) weeks advanced written notjfe if either

party chooses to terminate this agreement,

11. The Doctor agrees to give (4) weeks advanced written notice if helshe is unable

to attend a scheduled session due to vacation time or personal obligations.

on time,

he doctor :
15 minutes, to
diness.

ssional

d indemnify
ors, its

€S, suits,
gligent acts
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12. The Doctor agrees that the medical practice of the Professional

and the patient records of patients whom the Doctor has rendered care on

- ‘ProfessiowalCorporation, shall be and remairi-thé soté propefty-of the-Prof
Corporation.

13. The Doctor agrees to supervise nurse practitioners and other ny
provide back-up and to enter into necessary agreements with these nurse p
facilitate their practice with the Professional Corporation.

14. RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

14.1 Non-Interference. During the period of time Doctor is contracted by
Professional Corporation pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and for aperiod of three
(3) years thereafter, neither Doctor nor any corporation, partnership, or oth¢r business
entity or person owned or controlled by, directly or indirectly, the Doctor, shall engage or
participate in any effort or act to induce any of the patients, third party paygrs, health care
services providers, physicians, suppliers, associates, employees, or independgnt contractors
of Professional Corporation to cease to be a patient of, or otherwise to do buginess with, as
the case may be, the Professiongl Corporation.

14.2  Confidentiality and Nondisclosure. Doctor acknowledges a duty of
confidentiality owed to Professional Corporation. Dactor shall not, nor shall] any
corporation, partnership, or other business entity or person owned or contrgflled by Doctor,
directly or indirectly, at any time during or after her employment by Professjonal
Corporation, disclose or make accessible to anyone, use, or retain in writing|pr any other
medium, without the express written authorization of Professional Corporation, any
Confidential Information of Professional Corporation. Doctor hereby acknowledges that
the Confidential Information is the property of Professional Corporation, that she shall not
duplicate or make use of any such Confidential Information other than in p rsuit of
Professional Corporation's activities, and that, upon termination of this Agridement for any
reason, she shall deliver to Professional Corporation, without further deman{, all copies
thereof, in any medium whatsoever, which are then in her possession. "Co
Information" shall mean the terms and conditions of this Agreement and al
proprietary data, trade secrets and confidential information of Professional
or any of its affiliates, which is not legitimately in the public domain, includ
limited to, all pricing or business strategies, compensation or financial infor:
lists, patient files, charge data, price lists, contract forms and other books, r
relating to Professional Corporation's business, or that of any of its affiliate

orporation,
g, but not
ation, patient
fords or files

b-contracted
I:d fora
n of this

14.3. - Covenant Not to Compete. During the period of tixﬁe Doctor
with the Professional Corporation pursuant to the terms of this Agreement
period of three (3) years thereafter, regardless of the reason for the termina




Agreement, without the prior written consent of Professional Corporation, d hetor shall
not, directly or indirectly, own, manage, operate, join, control, finance or pafficipate in the
ownership, management, operation, control or financing of, or be connected [3s an officer,

et wanipnd ordirectapepartacr, prineipalscontractor, agent, representative consultant o bermise With: «.s st e bt
any medical practice performing abortions located within a 100 mile radius ¢f (i) the
current offices of Professional.Corporation in Cheverly, Frederick, Silver §
Baltimore Maryland or Fairfax, Virginia or (ii) any other office of Professio
Corporation staffed by Doctor. In this regard, “staffed by Doctor” means a
which Doctor worked during her period of independent contractorship. Thil
covenant is limited to and only applies to abortion services, and not to any o
services.

office in
restrictive
er Ob/Gyn

144 Equitable Remedies. Doctor acknowledges that the restrictiony contained in
this section 14 are reasonable and necessary to protect the legitimate interesty of
Professional Corporation and that any violation of such restrictions would réfult in

- irreparable injury to Professional Corporation. If the period of time or othey| restrictions
specified in this Article 14 should be adjudged unreasonable at any proceedifjg, then the- -
period of time or such other restrictions shall be reduced by the elimination or reduction of
such portion thereof so that such restrictions may be enforced in a manner ajjudged to be
reasonable. Doctor acknowledges that Professional Corporation shall be entjtled to
preliminary and permanent injunctive relief for a violation of any such restrittions without
having to prove actual damages or to post a bond; Professional Corporation [ghall also be
entitled to an equitable accounting of all earnings, profits and other benefits (3rising from
such violation, which rights shall be cumulative and in addition to any other|tights or
remedies to which Professional Corporation may be entitled in law or equityf|in addition,
Professional Corporation shall be entitled to payment of all costs and legal fees incurred in
obtaining equitable relief. In the event of a violation, the periods referred to||n this Article
shall be extended by a period of time equal to that period beginning with th
commencement of any such violation and ending when such violation shall h
finally terminated in good faith, Doctor hereby waives any objections on the grou
improper jurisdiction or venue to the commencement of an action in the Staf¢ of Maryland

DOCTOR ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE TERMS OF THIS SECTION 14.
BEEN NEGOTIATED AT ARM'S-LENGTH. DOCTOR REPRESENTS T}
UNDERSTANDS THE FULL EXTENY AND IMPLICATION OF THE TE]
SECTION 14.3 AND HEREBY KNOWINGLY AND YOLUNTARILY AGH
BOUND HEREBY. ’

15. The Doctor and the Professional Corporation agree that the D
independently practicing corporation/physician who shall practice her prof
best of her abilities and shall exercise her own professional judgment in the
treatment of all patients. The Professional Corporation promulgates its’ o
standards of practice, consistent with the published standards of the Natio




Federation. The Doctor agrees that she will adhere to these minimum stan

practice. Above and beyond these minimum standards, however, the Docto

practice her profession as she sees fit, and the Professional Corporation agr
L oesstnointerfere withithesexercise:of such professional-judgmentias o muiisrs

16. The Doctor and the Professional Corporation agree that the Doc
independent contractor, and not an employee. She shall be paid biweekly,
drawu on the bank account of the Professional Corporation. No taxes shall

Corporation shall report all earnings of the Doctor to the Internal Revenue

1099 form, which shall also be provided to the Doctor.

rds of
is free to
ps that it will

American Medical Associates, P.C. and Virginia Healthl Group, P.C.

By: gt C M

rd

Steve Brigham, M.D.

‘%ﬂa

ola Irene Riley, M.D. /
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Via Facsimile and Regular U.S. Mail

June 30, 2010

Ms. Siobhan B. Krier, Esq.

Deputy Attorney General

State of NJ Department of Law and Public Safety
Division of Law

124 Halsey Street, 5" Floor

P.O. Box 45029

Newark, NJ 07101

Fax: 1-973-648-7782

Re: Request for Additional Time to Answer Demand for Stat]

ment

Dear Ms. Krier:

I am writing to respectfully request additional time to answer your Demand
Under Oath in Writing, which was sent to my prior attorney, Mr. John Jacks
in today’s mail, I received correspondence from Mr. Jackson regarding this
his inability to represent me on this matter. Mr. Jackson has been on a trial si
Apparently, the documents indicate that an answer to the Demand is being r
very day.

I am writing to respectfully request an extension of time of 30 days to attemp

legal counsel and to then submit an answer to the Demand, along with all of the

supporting documents which were also requested.

eI RHY L-10r 0182

or Statement

. Arriving
atter and

ce June 1.
uested this

to obtain

ression that

I looked briefly at the Demand and it appears that you may have the false im
late-term abortions are being done by us in an office setting in New Jersey.

his portion

of your Demand I can directly answer now in this letter. We are not performiing any

abortions beyond 14 weeks in an office setting in New Jersey. This will be s
more detail in the formal answers that I will submit under oath to the questiof]
Demand. I am providing this information to you now, in case you or the Bog
an immediate answer to this part of your Demand by today.

t forth in
s in your
rd wanted

I hope that you will grant me this extension of time to attempt to find legal c<Imse1 and to
ti

submit the answers to the rest of your Demand. Thank you for your consider
request.

Sincerely yours,

St € s’ |

Steve Brigham, M.D.

on of this
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IN THE MATTER OF

STEVEN CHASE BRIGHAM, M.D.

Respondent
Unlicensed
* * * * *

*

*

*

CEASE AND DESIST ORDER

BEFORE THE

MARYLAND STATE
BOARD OF PHYSICIA
Case Numbers: 2007-
& 2011-0117

* * * *

NS

j448, 2010-0304.

Pursuant to the authority granted to the Board under Md. Health Occ. Ann §14-206 (e), the

Maryland State Board of Physicians (the

“Board”) hereby orders Steven Chale Brigham,

M.D.,(the “Respondent”) (D.0.B.08/29/1956), a physician unlicensed in Manyland to immediately

Cease and Desist from practicing medicine in Maryland without a license.

Based upon the investigative information received by the Board thus far, the

cause to believe that the following facts are true:

Board has probable

1. The Respondent is not and has never been licensed to practice medicine in Maryland.

2. The Respondent has performed surgical procedures in Elkton, Marylant on a regular

basis, performing two to three procedures on each visit during each of dpproximately two

visits per week for at least several months prior to the date of this Ordefl

. On August 13, 2010, the Respondent initiated a procedure, which then|had to be

completed on an urgent basis. The Respondent then followed the patieft in an

automobile as the patient, under his instructions, traveled to Elkton, Maryland for the

completion of the procedure. In Elkton, Maryland, the patient was admitted, as planned,

to a clinic owned by the Respondent for the completion of the procedure| The

Respondent directed the surgical procedure that took place at his clinic
. As recently as Friday, August 20, 2010, the Respondent arranged for an

assist in surgical procedures at Elkton, Maryland.

0n that date.

¢l attempted to




5. The Respondent has been observed performing surgical procedures|on approximately 50

occasions in Maryland at the Elkton location since January 2010.

The health of Maryland patients is being endangered by the Respondent's i{nlicensed practice

of medicine in this State. The Board’s investigation into the matter is ongoing.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

The practice of surgery, the assisting in or direction of the practice of surgery{ by another, and

the initiation of a procedure which then must be completed on an urgent basik

treatment in this State planned and participated in by the initiator of the procgd

by medical

ure, constitutes

the practice of medicine in Maryland. The Respondent's apparent practicing gf medicine without

a license in Maryland to the detriment of Maryland patients justifies and requires the Board to

exercise its powers under Md. Health Occ. Code Ann (“H.0.") §14-206 (e) tojissue a Cease and

Desist Order to the Respondent.

ORDER

i)
Based on the foregoing, it is this 2§ z day of ﬂ—u;. WUST 2010, byar

quorum of the Board:

ajority of the

ORDERED that pursuant to the authority vested by Maryland Medical Pfactice Act (the

“Act’), Md. Health Occ. Code Ann (*H.0.") § 14-206 (e), the Respondent shall IMMEDIATELY

CEASE and DESIST practicing medicine without a license at American Wome
located at 3506 N. Calvert Street, Suite 110, Baltimore, MD 21218; 6005 Land

6, Cheverly, MD 20785; 801 Toll House Avenue, H-6, Frederick, MD 21201; 47

N's Services

Qver Road, Suite

DO Berwyn

House Road, College Park, MD: 126 East High Street, Elkton, MD 21921; and any other

Maryland locations. This prohibition includes but is not limited to performing any

procedure in Maryland, initiating procedures that then must be completed on ar]

y|surgical

urgent basis by




medical treatment in Maryland planned and participated in by the initiator of fhe procedure, and

assisting in the provision of any surgical procedure in Maryland by providing direction or

assistance during the procedure to any physician performing a procedure in Maryla’nd. And itis

further

ORDERED that this is a public document pursuant to Md. State Gov'i|Code Ann. § 10-

611 ef seq.

A5 Dovicr OO | Q/ /‘ C i ¥
Date U Paul T. Elder, M.D.
Board Chair
NOTICE

This Order is effective when issued. If the Respondent either challenges this (]

the matter is adjudicated according to the procedures in the Board's regulatio

10.32.02.03. See COMAR 10.32.02.09

y

prder or violates it,

s at COMAR




